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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TrueLight Corporation 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of TrueLight Corporation (the “Company”) as at December 31, 

2024 and 2023, and the related statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the 

years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and its cash 

flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports 

by Securities Issuers.  

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial 

Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the parent 

company only financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants of the Republic of China (the “Code”), and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 

statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

 

The key audit matters in relation to the parent company only financial statements for the year ended December 

31,2024 are outlined as follows: 

Evaluation of inventories 

Description 

Refer to Note 4(11) for the accounting policy of inventory evaluation, and Notes 5(2) and 6(4) for the description 

of inventory items. Due to fierce market price competition for the products operated by the Company, the risk of 

inventory price loss is relatively high, and the Company’s inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net 

realizable value. For inventories that have passed a specific period of age and for inventories that are individually 

identified as obsolete or damaged, the net realizable value often involves manual judgment and thus has estimation 

uncertainty, so the accountant listed this as a key audit matter.  

 

How our audit addressed the matter 

The audit procedures we performed are based on the understanding of the operation and industry nature of the 

Company, and the evaluation of the inventory. The rationality of policies and procedures; the correctness of 

sampling inventory aging calculation; Relevant information, such as sales price, purchase price, and inventory 

depletion status, to confirm the rationality of the net realizable value, and evaluate the rationality of provisioning 

for loss of price reduction. 

Property, plant and equipment value-in-use measurement 

Description 

Refer to Note 4 (16) for the accounting policy on the assessment of impairment of property, plant and equipment, 

and Notes 5(2) and 6(6) for descriptions of property, plant and equipment items. The value-in-use of property, plant 

and equipment shall be used to measure its recoverable amount, and the property, plant and equipment shall be 

evaluated based on the aforementioned recoverable amount whether the property, plant and equipment are damaged. 

Valuation of the value-in-use of property, plant and equipment involves estimation and discounting of future cash 

flows, the determination of the present rate, the assumptions used in the forecast of future cash flow and the 

estimated results have a significant impact on the evaluation of value-in-use of property, plant and equipment, so 

we listed this as a key audit matter. 
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How our audit addressed the matter 

The verification procedure we performed is mainly to discuss the operation process of future cash flow estimation 

with the management and understand its product strategy and implementation status, evaluate the reasonableness 

of various assumptions used by the management to estimate future cash flows characteristics, including expected 

growth rate and gross profit margin, and evaluate the parameters used in the discount rate which including equity 

funds risk-reward ratio, industry risk factor and long-term market rate of return. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial 

statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial statements 

in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and for 

such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with ROC GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ROC GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

A. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

B. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal control;  

C. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management;  

D. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the parent 

company only financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;  

E. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and  

F. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 

activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only financial statements. We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our 
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audit opinion.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements for the year ended December 31,2024 

and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

 

Cheng, Ya-Huei 

Chiang Tsai-Yen        

 

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan 

March 07, 2025  
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      December 31, 2024   December 31,2023  
 Assets  Notes  Amount   %   Amount   %  

 Current assets                 

1100 Cash and cash equivalents  6(1)  $ 286,268   21   $ 192,973   14  

1170 Accounts receivable, net  6(3)   87,626   6    98,659   7  

1180 
Accounts receivable due from 

related parties, net  6(3) and 7   672   -    2,308   -  

1200 Other receivables     1,941   -    329   -  

1210 
Other receivables due from 

related parties  7   122,150   9    89,985   6  

130X Inventories  6(4)   227,943   16    294,049   21  

1410 Prepayments     3,735   -    6,798   -  

11XX Total current assets     730,335   52    685,101   48  

 Non-current assets                 

1535 
Non-current financial assets at 

amortized cost  6(2) and 8   41,089   3    40,706   3  

1550 
Investments accounted for using 

equity method  6(5)   155,624   11    213,473   15  

1600 Property, plant and equipment  6(6)   342,069   25    346,918   25  

1755 Right-of-use assets  6(7)   105,811   8    112,601   8  

1780 Intangible assets  6(9)   156   -    91   -  

1840 Deferred tax assets  6(26)   18,581   1    18,581   1  

1900 Other non-current assets     75   -    75   -  

15XX Total non-current assets     663,405   48    732,445   52  

1XXX Total assets    $ 1,393,740   100   $ 1,417,546   100  
 

(continued) 



TrueLight Corporation 
Parent Company Only Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2024 and 2023  
Unit：NT$ thousand 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 
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     December 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
 Liabilities and equity  Notes  Amount   %   Amount   %  

 Current liabilities                 

2100 Short-term loans  6(10)  $ -   -   $ 127,420   9  

2150 Notes payable     50   -    3,805   -  

2170 Accounts payable     17,427   1    30,399   2  

2180 Accounts payable to related 

parties 
 7 

  -   -    6,848   -  

2200 Other payables  6(11)   73,371   5    87,838   6  

2220 Other payables to related parties  6(11) and 7   112,301   8    156,887   11  

2280 Current lease liabilities     7,880   1    7,880   1  

2320 Long-term loans, current portion  6(12)   8,190   1    64,886   5  

2399 Other current liabilities, others     3,487   -    1,927   -  

21XX Total current liabilities     222,706   16    487,890   34  

 Non-current liabilities                 

2540 Long-term loans  6(12)   70,000   5    64,108   4  

2580 Non-current lease liabilities     102,523   7    108,772   8  

2600 Other non-current liabilities  6(5)   41,381   3    21,766   2  

25XX Total non-current liabilities     213,904   15    194,646   14  

2XXX Total liabilities     436,610   31    682,536   48  

 Equity                 

 Share capital  6(15)               

3110 Ordinary shares     1,114,747   80    964,747   68  

 Capital surplus  6(16)               

3200 Capital surplus     306,311   22    342,417   25  

 Retained earnings  6(17)               

3310 Legal reserve     -   -    433   -  

3320 Special reserve     -   -    3,893   -  

3350 Accumulated deficit   (  453,344 ) ( 32 ) (  560,837 ) ( 40 ) 

 Other equity interest  6(18)               

3400 Other equity interest   (  10,584 ) ( 1 ) (  15,643 ) ( 1 ) 

3XXX Total equity     957,130   69    735,010   52  

 Significant commitments and 

contingencies 
 9 

              

 Significant subsequent events  11               

3X2X Total liabilities and equity    $ 1,393,740   100   $ 1,417,546   100  
 



TrueLight Corporation 
Parent Company Only Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 
Unit：NT$ thousand 

(Except loss per share) 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 
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      2024   2023  

Items  Notes  Amount   %   Amount   %  

4000 Operating revenue  6(19) and 7  $ 556,137   100   $ 622,423   100  

5000 Operating costs  6(4)(24)(25)and 7 (  496,763 ) ( 89 ) (  536,217 ) ( 86 ) 

5900 Gross profit from operation     59,374   11    86,206   14  

5910 Unrealized profit from sales   (  179 )  -  (  282 )  -  

5920 Realized profit from sale     282   -    300   -  

5950 Gross profit from operation, net     59,477   11    86,224   14  

 Operating expenses  6(24)(25) and 7               

6100 Selling expenses   (  15,745 ) ( 3 ) (  17,519 ) ( 3 ) 

6200 Administrative expenses   (  86,710 ) ( 15 ) (  89,653 ) ( 15 ) 

6300 Research and development 

expenses 

  

(  132,703 ) ( 24 ) (  174,381 ) ( 28 ) 

6450 Impairment loss/gain and 

reversal of impairment loss 

determined in accordance with 

IFRS 9 

 12 

  916   -  (  7,184 ) ( 1 ) 

6000 Total operating expenses   (  234,242 ) ( 42 ) (  288,737 ) ( 47 ) 

6900 Net operating loss   (  174,765 ) ( 31 ) (  202,513 ) ( 33 ) 

 Non-operating income and 

expenses 
  

              

7100 Interest income  6(20)   8,756   1    4,213   1  

7010 Other income  6(21)   7,480   1    15,360   3  

7020 Other gains and losses, net  6(22) (  605 )  -    1,516   -  

7050 Finance costs  6(23) (  5,996 ) ( 1 ) (  11,444 ) ( 2 ) 

7070 Share of loss of subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using equity 

method 

 6(5) 

(  74,120 ) ( 13 ) (  192,665 ) ( 31 ) 

7000 Total non-operating income 

and expenses 
  

(  64,485 ) ( 12 ) (  183,020 ) ( 29 ) 

7900 Loss before income tax   (  239,250 ) ( 43 ) (  385,533 ) ( 62 ) 

7950 Income tax expense     -   -  (  4,904 ) ( 1 ) 

8200 Loss for the year   ( $ 239,250 ) ( 43 ) ( $ 390,437 ) ( 63 ) 

 Other comprehensive income,net                 

 Items that may be subsequently 

reclassified to profit or loss  
  

              

8380 Exchange differences on 

translation 
 6(18) 

 $ 5,059   1  ( $ 6,286 ) ( 1 ) 

8300 Total other comprehensive 

income, net 
  

 $ 5,059   1  ( $ 6,286 ) ( 1 ) 

8500 Total comprehensive income for 

the year 
  

( $ 234,191 ) ( 42 ) ( $ 396,723 ) ( 64 ) 

            

 Loss per share  6(27)         

9750 Basic   ( $ 2.21 ) ( $ 4.68 ) 

9850 Diluted   ( $ 2.21 ) ( $ 4.68 )  



TrueLight Corporation 
Parent Company Only Statements of Changes in Equity 

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023                                           Unit：NT$ thousand 
       Retained earnings     
 

Notes 

 

Ordinary share 

 

Capital surplus 

 

Legal reserve 

 

Special reserve 

 

Accumulated deficit 

 Exchanges differences 

on translation of 

foreign financial 

statements 

 

Total equity 
 

  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 
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Year ended December 31,2023                              

  Balance at January 1, 2023     $ 764,747    $ 180,243    $ 433    $ 3,893   ( $ 170,400 )  ( $ 9,357 )   $ 769,559  

    Loss for the year    -    -    -    -   ( 390,437 )   -   ( 390,437 ) 

    Other comprehensive income for the 
year 

 
  -    -    -    -    -   ( 6,286 )  ( 6,286 ) 

  Total comprehensive income     -    -    -    -   ( 390,437 )  ( 6,286 )  ( 396,723 ) 

  Issue of shares  6(15)(16)   200,000    158,451    -    -    -    -    358,451  

  Share-based payment transaction 6(16)   -    3,869    -    -    -    -    3,869  

  Changes in ownership interest in 
subsidiaries  

6(16) 
  -   ( 146 )   -    -    -    -   ( 146 ) 

  Balance at December 31, 2023    $ 964,747    $ 342,417    $ 433    $ 3,893   ( $ 560,837 )  ( $ 15,643 )   $ 735,010  

Year ended December 31,2024                              

  Balance at January 1, 2024     $ 964,747    $ 342,417    $ 433    $ 3,893   ( $ 560,837 )  ( $ 15,643 )   $ 735,010  

    Loss for the year    -    -    -    -   ( 239,250 )   -   ( 239,250 ) 

    Other comprehensive income for the 
year 

 
  -    -    -    -    -    5,059    5,059  

  Total comprehensive income    -    -    -    -   ( 239,250 )   5,059   ( 234,191 ) 

  Issue of shares 6(15)(16)   150,000    306,000    -    -    -    -    456,000  

  Deficit compensation 6(16)(17)   -   ( 342,417 )  ( 433 )  ( 3,893 )   346,743    -    -  

  Changes in equity of associates and 
joint ventures accounted for using 
equity method 

6(16) 

  -    311    -    -    -    -    311  

  Balance at December 31, 2024     $ 1,114,747    $ 306,311    $ -    $ -   ( $ 453,344 )  ( $ 10,584 )   $ 957,130  
  



TrueLight Corporation 
Parent Company Only Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 
Unit：NT$ thousand 

 
  Notes  2024    2023  
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES            

Loss before tax   ( $ 239,250 )  ( $ 385,533 ) 

Adjustments            

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)            

Expected credit loss (gain)  12 (  916 )    7,184  

Depreciation expense  6(6)(7)(24)   68,151     89,753  

Amortization expense  6(9)(24)   47     894  

Interest income  6(20) (  8,756 )  (  4,213 ) 

Interest expense  6(23)   5,996     11,444  

Impairment of non-financial assets     11,292     -  

Share-based payments  6(14)   -     3,621  

Gain on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 
 6(22) 

(  3,446 )  (  3,798 ) 

Gain on disposal of other assets   (  19 )  (  1,411 ) 

Unrealized profit from sales     179     282  

Realized profit from sales   (  282 )  (  300 ) 

Share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries, associates 

and joint ventures accounted for using equity 

method 

  

  74,120     192,665  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities            

Changes in operating assets            

Accounts receivable     11,949     16,964  

Accounts receivable due from related parties     1,636     2,443  

Other receivables   (  622 )    399  

Other receivables due from related parties     6,835   (  1,116 ) 

Inventories     66,106     58,048  

Prepayments     3,063   (  1,940 ) 

Changes in operating liabilities            

Notes payable   (  3,755 )    979  

Accounts payable   (  12,972 )    9,057  

Accounts payable to related parties   (  6,848 )    292  

Other payables     31   (  31,912 ) 

Other payables to related parties   (  44,586 )  (  27,622 ) 

Other current liabilities     1,560   (  871 ) 

Cash outflow generated from operations   (  70,487 )  (  64,691 ) 

Interest received     8,470     4,211  

Interest paid   (  6,294 )  (  11,419 ) 

Income taxes paid   (  706 )  (  240 ) 

Net cash flows used in operating activities   (  69,017 )  (  72,139 ) 

 

(continued)



TrueLight Corporation 
Parent Company Only Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 
Unit：NT$ thousand 

 
  Notes  2024    2023  

             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES            

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  6(28) ( $ 71,091 )  ( $ 54,107 ) 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment     1,371     103  

Acquisition of intangible assets  6(9) (  112 )  (  113 ) 

Lending funds   (  39,000 )    -  

Decrease (Increase) in other financial assets  8 (  383 )    33,913  

Net cash flows (used in) investing 

activities   (  109,215 )  (  20,204 ) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES            

Decrease in short-term loans  6(29) (  127,420 )  (  239,231 ) 

Proceeds from long-term loans  6(29)   70,000     43,500  

Repayments of long-term loans  6(29) (  120,804 )  (  51,663 ) 

Proceeds from issuing shares  6(15)   456,000     358,451  

Repayments of lease liabilities  6(7)(29) (  6,249 )  (  6,157 ) 

Net cash flows from financing activities     271,527     104,900  

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents     93,295     12,557  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period     192,973     180,416  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    $ 286,268    $ 192,973  
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TrueLight Corporation  
Notes to  parent  company only financial  s ta tements  

For the years  ended December31,  2024 and 2023  

Uni t： NT$ thousand  

(Unless o therwise indicated )  

 
1.  HISTORY AND ORGANISATION  

(1)TrueLight Corporat ion ( the company)  was es tabli shed in September  1997 in the Republic  o f China.  

The main business  i tems of  the  company are design,  research and development,  Pro duct ion and  

sa les are app lied  to  "optical  f iber  communica t ion,  4G/5G mobi le  communica tion base stat ion 

interconnection,  cloud data center,  3D Sensing/Near -Fie ld  Sensing/Flood I l luminat ion ” Vert ica l  

Cavity Sur face  Emit t ing Laser  (VCSEL),  Edge laser  (FP /  DF B),  photodiode (PIN /  PINTIA)" ,  

includ ing components,  sub -modules,  Light  engine/AOC and o ther  types o f products.   

(2)In order  to  improve the corporate governance  struc ture and pro tec t  the interes ts  of stakeholders,  

the Company par t icipa ted in the  Corporate  Governance  Assessment and Cert i ficat ion program 

organized by the Chinese Corpora te Governance Associat ion,  and on Sep tember  23,  2013,  the 

Company passed the "CG6008 Corporate Governance Universal  Version Cer t i f icat ion" .  The  

Company wi l l  continue to  s treng then corporate governance  and al ign wi th internat ional  standard s  

to  mainta in co mpet i t iveness in the cap ital  market .   

2.  THE DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ANDPROCEDURES FOR AUTHORISATION  

The parent  company only f inancia l  sta tements  were reported  to  the  Board of  Direc tors on March 07,  

2025.  

3 .  APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS  

(1)Effect  o f  the  adopt ion of new issuance  of or  amendments to  Internat ional  Financial  Report ing 

Standards (“IFRSs”)  as endorsed by the Financial  Supervisory Commiss ion (“FSC”)  

New standards,  interpre tat ions  and amendments tha t  came into effec t  as  endorsed  by the FSC and 

became effec tive from 202 4 are as fo l lo ws:  

      New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments        

Effective date by 

International 

Accounting 

Standards Board 

Amendments to IFRS 16, ‘Lease liability in a sale and leaseback’ January 1, 2024 

Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non-current’ January 1, 2024 

Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Non-current liabilities with covenants’ January 1, 2024 

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7, ‘Supplier finance arrangements’ January 1, 2024 

 

The above s tandards  and  interpre ta t ions  have  no s igni f icant  impacts on the Co mpany ’s  

f inancia l  condit ion and f inancia l  per formance  based  on the Company ’s  assessment.  
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(2)Effect  o f  new issuances o f  or  amendments  to  IFRSs as  endorsed by the FSC but  not  ye t  adopted 

by the Company  

New standards,  interpre tat ions and amendments  endorsed by the FSC effect ive from 202 5 are as  

fo l lo ws:  

      New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments       

Effective date by 

International 

Accounting 

Standards Board 

Amendments to IAS 21, ‘Lack of exchangeability’ January 1,2025 

 

The above standards and  interpre ta t ions have  no signi ficant  imp acts  on the Company’s  

f inancia l  condit ion and f inancia l  per formance  based  on the Company ’s  assessment.  

(3)IFRSs i ssued by IASB but not  ye t  endorsed by the FSC  

New standards ,  in terpretat ions and amendments i ssued by IASB but not  yet  included in the IFRSs 

as endorsed by the FSC are as fo l lo ws:  

      New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments                

Effective date by 

International 

Accounting 

Standards Board 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, ‘Amendments to the classification and 

measurement of financial instruments’ 

January 1, 2026 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, ‘Contracts referencing nature dependent 

electricity’ 

January 1, 2026 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets between 

an investor and its associate or joint venture’ 

To be determined by 

International Accounting 

Standards Board 

IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023 

Amendment to IFRS 17, ‘Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 

comparative information’ 

January 1, 2023 

IFRS 18, ‘Presentation and disclosure in financial statements’ January 1, 2027 

IFRS 19, ‘Subsidiaries without public accountability: disclosures’ January 1, 2027 

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards—Volume 11 January 1, 2026 

 

IFRS 18,  ‘Presentat ion and d isclosure  in f inancial  statements ’ replaces IAS 1 .  The standard 

introduces  a  def ined  s truc ture o f  the  s ta tement of comprehensive income,  disc losure 

requirements rela ted to  management -defined  per formance measures,  a nd enhanced pr inc iples  

on aggregation and disaggregat ion which apply to  the  pr imary f inancia l  statements and notes .  

Except  for  the fol lowing ,  the above standards and interpretat ions have  no signi ficant  impacts  

on the Company’s  financia l  condit ion and f inan cia l  per formance.  

4.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

The pr inc ipal  accounting pol ic ies appl ied in the  preparat ion of these parent  company only f inancia l  

statements are set  out  below. These po lic ies have been consis tently  appl ied to  a l l  the  per iod s  

presented,  unless o therwise sta ted.  

(1)Statement  o f compliance  

The parent  co mpany only f inancia l  sta tements o f the Company have  been prepared in accordance 

wi th  the  Regulat ions  Governing the Preparat ion of Financial  Reports by Secur i t ies I ssuers.  
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(2)Basis  o f prepara t ion  

A.The parent  company only f inancia l  s tatements  have been prepared under  the  histor ical  cos t  

convent ion.  

B.The preparat ion of f inancia l  statements in conformi ty wi th Interna t ional  Financia l  Repor t ing 

Standards,  Interna tional  Account ing Stan dards,  IFRIC Interpre tat ions,  and SIC Interpre tat ions  

as endorsed by the FSC (collec t ive ly re ferred herein as  the “IFRSs”)  requi res the use  o f cer tain  

cr i t ical  account ing est imates.  I t  a lso requires management to  exercise  i t s  judgement in the  

process  o f applying the Company ’s  account ing polic ies.  The areas involving a  higher  degree of  

judgement or  complexi ty,  or  areas where  assumpt ions  and es t imates  are  s igni f icant  to  the parent  

company only f inancial  statements are d isclosed  in Note 5 .   

(3)Fore ign currency translat ion  

The parent  company only f inancial  s ta tements a re presented  in  New Taiwan do llars,  which i s  the 

Company’s funct ional  currency.。  

Fore ign currency transactions and ba lances  

A.Foreign currency transac tions  are translated  into  the  funct ional  curren cy us ing the exchange 

rates prevai l ing a t  the dates o f  the  transact ions.  Fore ign exchange  gains and  losses result ing 

from the se t t lement o f such transact ions are recognized in profi t  or  loss  in the per iod in which 

they ar i se.   

B.Monetary asse ts and  l iab il i t ies deno minated in fore ign currenc ies a t  the per iod end are 

retranslated a t  the exchange ra tes prevail ing a t  the balance  shee t  da te.  Exchange di fferences  

ar i sing upon re - transla t ion at  the ba lance sheet  date are recognized in p rof i t  or  loss.  

C.Non-monetary asse ts and l iab il i t ies denominated in fore ign currencies he ld a t  fair  value through 

prof i t  or  loss are re - translated  at  the exchange rates prevai l ing at  the  ba lance  shee t  da te;  thei r  

t ransla t ion d ifferences are recognised in prof i t  or  loss .  Non -monetary asse ts and l iabi l i t ies  

denominated in fore ign cur renc ies he ld a t  fa ir  value through other  co mprehensive  income are 

re- translated a t  the exchange rates  prevail ing at  the balance sheet  date ;  their  t rans la t ion 

diffe rences  are recognised in o ther  comprehensive  inco me.  However,  non -monetary assets and  

l iab il i t ies denominated in  fore ign currenc ies  tha t  a re not  measured at  fa ir  value  are trans lated  

using the histor ica l  exchange ra tes a t  the da tes o f the ini t ial  t ransac tions .  

D.All  o ther  foreign exchange ga ins and losses based on the nature of those transac tions a re  

presented in the statement  o f comprehensive income wi thin “o ther  gains  and losses”.  

(4)Class i f ica t ion of  current  and non -current  i tems  

A.  Asse ts tha t  meet  one  of the fo l lo wing cr i ter ia  are class i fied as current  asse ts;  o therwise they 

are c lassi f ied as non -cur rent  asse ts:  

(a)Assets ar i s ing from operat ing act ivi t ies  tha t  are expected to  be  rea l ized,  or  are  intended  to  

be so ld or  consumed wi thin the  normal operat ing cycle;  

(b)Assets he ld mainly fo r  trad ing p urposes;  

(c)Assets tha t  are expected to  rea l ize wi thin twe lve months  from the ba lance sheet  date ;  

(d)Cash and cash equiva lents,  exclud ing those res tr ic ted cash and cash equiva lents tha t  are to  

be exchanged or  used to  set t le  l iabi l i t ies more  than twelve mon ths a fter  the balance shee t  

date.  

B. Liab il i t ies that  meet  one of the fo l lo wing cr i ter ia  are c lassi f ied as cur rent  l iab il i t ies;  o therwise 

they are c lassi f ied as non -current  l iabi l i t ies :  

(a)Liabi l i t ies tha t  are  to  be set t le  wi thin the normal operat ing cyc le ;  

(b)Liab il i t ies he ld mainly for  trad ing purposes ;   

(c)Liabi l i t ies tha t  are  to  be set t led wi thin twelve  months from the balance sheet  date;  

(d)Liab il i t ies for  which the  repayment  da te cannot  be  extended  uncondit ional ly to  more than 

twelve months a f ter  the balance shee t  da te.   

(5)Cash equivalents  

Cash equivalents re fer  to  short - term,  highly l iquid investments that  a re readi ly convert ible  to  

kno wn amount o f cash and which are subject  to  an insigni ficant  r i sk of changes in va lue.  Time 

deposit s  that  meet  the de f ini t ion above and are he ld for  the purpose of meet ing short - term cash 
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commitment in opera t ions are c lassi f ied as cash equiva lents .  

(6)Financial  assets a t  amor ti sed cost  

A.  Financia l  asse ts a t  amor ti sed cost  are those tha t  meet  al l  o f the fo l lowing cr i ter i a:   

(a)The objec tive o f the business model i s  achieved  by col lect ing contractua l  cash f lows.  

(b)The asse ts ’ contractual  cash flo ws represent  solely payments o f pr incipal  and interest .  

B. The Co mpany’s  t ime deposit s  which do not  fa l l  under  cash equiva lents are those  wi th a  short  

matur i ty per iod and are measured a t  ini t ia l  investment  amount as the e ffect  o f d iscount ing i s  

immater ial .  

(7)Accounts and no tes receivable  

A. Refers to  accounts  and no tes that  have been uncondit iona lly charged  for  the r ight  to  exchan ge 

the va lue of  the  considerat ion due to  the transfer  of  goods or  services.  

B.  The short - term accounts  and  notes  rece ivable  wi thout bear ing interest  a re  subsequent ly 

measured a t  ini t ia l  invoice amount as the effect  of d iscount ing i s  immater ia l .  

(8)Impairment o f  financial  assets  

For f inancia l  assets  a t  amort ized  cost ,  a t  each repor t ing da te,  the Company,  a f ter  taking into  

considera t ion a l l  reasonable  and ver i f iab le informat ion that  inc ludes forecasts,  recognizes  the 

impai rment provision for  12 months expecte d credi t  losses i f  there has no t  been a s igni f icant  

increase in credi t  r isk s ince ini t ia l  recogni t ion,  or  recognizes the impairment provision for  the  

l i fe t ime expected credi t  losses ( the “ECLs”)  i f  such credi t  r i sk has  increased since ini t ial  

recogni t ion.  On the other  hand ,  for  accounts receivab le that  do no t  conta in a  s igni f icant  f inancing 

component,  the  Company recognizes the impai rment provis ion for  l i fet ime ECL.   

(9)Derecogni t ion of  financia l  assets  

The Company derecognizes a  financial  asset  when the co ntractual  r ights  to  receive  the cash flo ws 

from the f inancial  asse t  are exp ired.  

(10)Leasing arrangements ( lessor) -operat ing leases  

Lease income from an operat ing lease (ne t  o f any incent ives given to  the lessee)  is  recognized in  

prof i t  or  loss on a s tra ig ht - l ine bas is  over  the lease  term.  

(11)Inventor ies  

Inventor ies are  s ta ted  at  the  lower  o f  cost  and  net  rea l izable value .  The  cost  is  de termined  using 

the weighted -average  method.  The  Cost  o f  f inished  goods and  work in  process  compr ises  raw 

mater ia ls ,  d irec t  labors,  o ther  direc t  costs and factory overhead amort ized at  normal product ion 

capac ity.  I t  excludes  bor rowing costs.  The i tem by i tem approach i s  used in app lying the  lo wer of  

cos t  and net  rea l izable value.  Net rea l izable value is  the es t imated se l l ing pr ice,  less the es t imated  

cost  a t  comple tion and the est imated costs  necessary to  make the sa le .  

(12)Investments accounted for  using equi ty method/Other  non -current  l iabil i t ies  

A.  Subsid iar ies are  a l l  enti t ies  ( includ ing s truc tured  ent i t ies)  control led by the  Company.  The  

Company contro ls an ent i ty when the Company is  exposed,  or  has r ights,  to  var iab le re turns 

from it s  involvement wi th the enti ty and  has the abil i ty to  a ffect  those re turns  through i t s  po wer  

over  the  ent i ty.   

B.  Unreal ized  gains o r  losses a r i sing from transact ions  be tween the Company and subsid iar ies are  

el iminated.  Accounting polic ies o f  the  subsidiar ies have been adjusted where necessary to  ensure 

consis tency wi th the po l icies  adopted by the Company.  

C.  The Company’s  share o f i t s  subsid iar ies’ post -acquis i t ion prof i t s  or  losses i s  recognized  in  

prof i t  or  loss,  and i t s  share o f  post -acquisi t ion movements in other  comprehensive  income is  

recognized in o ther  comprehensive income.  When the Company ’s  share of losses in subsid iary 

equals or  exceeds  i ts  interest  in the subsid iary,  the Company cont inues to  recognize losses  

proport iona te to  i t s  o wnership.  

D.  Changes  in a  parent ’s o wnership  interes t  in  a  subsid iary tha t  do no t  result  in the parent  los ing 

control  o f  the subsidiary ( transac tions wi th no n-cont rol l ing inte rests)  are accounted for  as equi ty  

transac tions,  i .e .  t ransac tions wi th  owners in the ir  capac ity as o wners.  Any d ifference be tween 

the amount by which the non -contro ll ing inte res ts  are adjusted and the fa ir  va lue of the  

considera t ion paid  o r  received  i s  recognized d irect ly in equi ty.  
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E. When the  Company loses  control  o f a  subsidiary,  the  Company remeasures any investment  

reta ined  in  the former  subsid iary a t  i t s  fa ir  value.  That  fair  va lue  i s  regarded as  the  fa ir  value  

on ini t ia l  recogni t io n of  a  financial  asset  or  the  cost  on ini t ia l  recogni t ion of the assoc iate  or  

joint  venture .  Any di fference be tween fair  va lue and carrying amount i s  recognized in profi t  or  

loss.  Al l  amounts previously recognized in other  co mprehensive income in relat ion to  the  

subsid iary are rec lassi f ied to  prof i t  or  loss on the same basis as would be required i f  the re la ted  

asse ts  or  l iabi l i t ies  were  disposed of .  That  is ,  when the Company loses  control  o f  a  subsid iary,  

al l  ga ins or  losses  previously recognized  in  o ther  c omprehensive  income in rela t ion to  the  

subsid iary should be rec lass i fied from equity to  prof i t  or  loss,  i f  such ga ins or  losses would be  

reclass i fied  to  prof i t  or  loss when the rela ted asse ts  or  l iab il i t ies are disposed of .  

F.  Associa tes are a l l  ent i t ies o ver  which the  Company has signi ficant  inf luence but  not  control .  In 

genera l ,  i t  is  presumed tha t  the investor  has  s igni ficant  influence ,  i f  an investor  holds,  d irect ly 

or  indirec tly 20  percent  or  more of  the  vot ing power o f  the  investee.  Investments  in ass ocia tes  

are accounted for  using the equity method  and are ini t ial ly recognized a t  cost .  

G.  The Company’s  share  o f i t s  assoc iates ’ post -acquisi t ion profi t s  or  losses  i s  recognized in prof i t  

or  loss,  and i t s  share  of post -acquisi t ion movements in other  compr ehensive  inco me is  

recognized in  other  comprehensive income.  When the Company ’s  share of losses in assoc iate  

equals or  exceeds i t s  in terest  in the assoc iate ,  inc luding any other  unsecured receivables,  the  

Company does  not  recognize  fur ther  losses,  unless  i t  has incurred  legal  or  construc tive  

obliga tions or  made payments on behal f o f  the associate .  

H.  When changes  in an assoc iate ’s equity do no t  ar i se f rom profi t  or  loss or  other  co mprehensive 

income of the assoc ia te  and such changes do not  affec t  the Compan y’s  ownership percentage of  

the assoc ia te ,  the Company recognizes the Company ’s  share o f change  in  equi ty o f the assoc ia te  

in  ‘cap ital  surp lus ’ in proport ion to  i t s  ownership.  

I .  Unrea lized ga ins on t ransact ions be tween the  Co mpany and i t s  associates are  e l iminated to  the  

extent  o f the Company’s  interes t  in the associa tes.  Unreal ized losses are also el iminated unless  

evidence sho w an impairment o f the asse t  t ransferred fro m the transac tion.  Account ing policies  

of  associates  have  been adjus ted  where necessar y to  ensure consistency wi th  the po licies  adopted  

by the Company.  

J .  In  the case that  an associa te  i ssues  new shares  or  buys  treasury s tocks ( includ ing the Co mpany  

does  not  acquire  or  dispose  shares  proport iona te ly) ,  which result s  in  a  change in the  Compan y’s  

ownership  percentage of  the  associate  but  mainta ins  s igni f icant  inf luence  on the assoc ia te ,  then 

“capi ta l  surp lus” and  “investments  accounted for  under  equity method ” shall  be adjus ted for  the 

increase or  decrease o f  i ts  share  o f equity interest .  I f  th e  above  condit ion causes a  decrease in  

the Company’s  ownership percentage  of the associa te ,  in add it ion to  the above adjus tment,  the  

amounts previously recognized in o ther  comprehensive income in relat ion to  the assoc ia te  a re  

reclass i fied to  profi t  or  loss  proport iona te ly on the same basis as would be requi red i f  the  

relevant  assets or  l iab i l i t ies were d isposed of .  Upon loss o f  s igni f icant  influence  over  an 

assoc iate ,  the  Co mpany remeasures  any investment reta ined  in the  former associate  a t  i t s  fair  

va lue.  Any di fference be tween fa ir  va lue and car rying amount i s  recognized in p rofi t  or  loss.  

K.  Upon loss  o f  s igni f icant  influence  over  an associa te ,  the amounts p reviously recognized in o ther  

comprehensive income in relat ion to  the assoc iate ,  are  reclass i fied  t o  prof i t  o r  loss,  on the same  

basis as would be required i f  the re levant  assets or  l iab il i t ies were disposed of.  I f  i t  s t i l l  re ta ins  

signi ficant  influence over  this assoc ia te ,  then the amounts p reviously recognized in o ther  

comprehensive inco me in re la t ion  to  the assoc iate  are reclass i f ied to  profi t  or  loss 

proport iona te ly.  

L.  According to  Regulat ions Governing the Preparat ion of Financial  Reports  by Secur i t ies I ssuers,  

prof i t  and o ther  co mprehensive income in the separa te  financial  statements should be the  same 

as p rofi t  and  other  comprehensive  income at t r ibutab le  to  shareholders o f  the  parent  in the  

conso lida ted  financial  s tatements,  and the equi ty  in the separa te  f inancia l  sta tements should be  

the same as the equity at tr ibutable to  shareholders o f the par ent  in the conso lida ted f inancia l  

statements.  

(13)Property,  plant  and equipment  

A. Proper ty,  plant  and equipment  are ini t ia l ly recorded at  cost .  Borrowing costs  incurred dur ing 

the construct ion per iod are capi tal ized .  

B. Subsequent cos ts a re included in th e asse t ’s carrying amount or  recognized as a  separa te  asse t ,  
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as appropria te ,  only when i t  is  probable tha t  future economic benefi ts  associated wi th the i tem 

wi l l  f low to  the  Company and the cost  o f the  i tem can be measured rel iably.  The carrying amount  

of the rep laced par t  i s  derecognized.  All  other  repair s and maintenance are charged to  profi t  or  

loss dur ing the f inancial  per iod in which they are incurred.  

C.  Except  for  land  which i s  no t  deprecia ted,  o ther  property,  p lant  and equip ment  app ly cost  model 

and are depreciated using the s tra ight - l ine method to  a l loca te their  cost  over  the ir  est imated  

useful  l ives.  I f  each component o f  proper ty,  p lant  and equipment is  signi f icant ,  i t  should  be  

deprec iated separately.  

D. The assets ’ residual  values,  useful  l ives a nd deprec iat ion methods are reviewed,  and adjus ted i f  

appropria te ,  a t  each end of the f inancia l  repor t ing per iod.  I f  expecta t ions  for  the assets ’ residual  

va lues and useful  l ives  differ  from previous est imates or  the pa tterns  of consumpt ion of the  

asse ts ’ future economic benefi ts  embodied in the asse ts have changed s igni f icant ly,  any change  

is  accounted for  as a  change in est imate under  IAS 8,  “Account ing Polic ies,  Changes  in  

Accounting Est imates and Errors ”,  from the date  of  the  change.  The  est imated  usefu l  l ives  o f the  

bui ldings  are 5~40 years ,  machinery and  equipment  a re 2~10  years  and  misce llaneous equipment  

are 2~5  years.  

(14)Leasing arrangements ( lessee) -r ight -o f-use asse ts / lease l iabi l i t ies  

A.  Leases are recognized as a  r ight -o f-use asset  and a  corresponding lease  l iab il i ty at  the da te  at  

which the leased asse t  i s  avai lab le  for  use by the Company.  For  short - te rm leases or  leases  o f  

low value  assets,  lease payments are recognized  as an expense on a straight - l ine bas is over  the  

lease term.   

B.Lease l iab i l i t ies include the ne t  present  value of the remaining lease payments at  the 

commencement da te,  d iscounted  us ing the  incrementa l  borro wing interest  ra te .  Lease payments  

are compr ised of f ixed  payments  which less any lease incent ives receivable.   

The Company subsequent ly measures the lease  l iab il i ty a t  amort i sed cost  us ing the interes t  

method and recognizes  interest  expense over  the  lease term. The lease  l iabi l i ty i s  remeasured  

and the amount o f remeasurement is  recognized as an adjustment to  the r ight -o f-use asse t  when  

there are changes in the lease term or  lease payments and such changes do not  ar i se from contract  

modificat ions.  

C.  Right -o f-use assets are recognized at  cos t  at  the commencement da te o f the lease,  which inc ludes:  

(a)The amount o f  the  ini t ia l  m easurement o f lease l iabi l i t ies ;   

(b)Any lease payments  made a t  or  before the commencement date.   

The r ight -o f-use asset  i s  measured subsequently using the cost  model and is  deprec iated from 

the co mmencement da te to  the ear l ier  o f the end of the asse t ’s useful  l i fe  or  the  end of the lease  

term. When the lease l iabil i ty is  remeasured,  the  amount o f remeasurement  i s  recognized as an 

adjustment to  the r ight -of-use asset .   

(15)Intangible  assets  

Computer  sof tware i s  amor tized on a s tra ight - l ine basis over  i ts  es t imated useful  l i fe  o f 3  years.  

(16)Impairment o f  non -f inancial  assets  

The Company assesses at  each balance shee t  da te the recoverable amounts o f those assets where 

there i s  an ind icat ion that  they are impaired .  An impairment loss i s  recognized for  the amo unt by 

which the asset ’s carrying amount exceeds i t s  recoverab le amount.  The recoverab le amount i s  the  

higher  o f an asset ’s fair  va lue less costs to  sel l  or  value in use.  Except  for  good will ,  when the  

circumstances  or  reasons for  recogniz ing impairment  los s for  an asset  in  pr ior  years no  longer  

exist  or  d iminish,  the  impairment  loss is  reversed.  The  increased  car rying amount due  to  reversal  

should no t  be more than what the deprecia ted or  amor tized his tor ical  cost  would have been i f  the 

impai rment had no t  be en recognized.   

(17)Borrowings  

Borrowings are  recognized ini t ia l ly a t  fair  value,  net  o f  t ransact ion costs incurred.  Borro wings  are  

subsequently stated at  amort ized cost ;  any d i fference between the proceeds (ne t  o f t ransact ion 

costs)  and the redemption val ue  i s  recognized in prof i t  or  loss over  the  per iod of  the borro wings  

using the effec tive  interes t  method.   
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(18)Accounts and Notes  payable  

Notes  and accounts payable  are  obl iga tions to  pay for  goods  or  services tha t  have been acquired 

in  the ord inary course  o f business from suppliers.  They are  recognized ini t ial ly a t  fair  value and  

subsequently measured a t  amort ized  cost  using the e ffective interest  method.  Ho wever,  short - term 

accounts  payable wi thout bear ing interest  are  subsequently measured a t  in i t ia l  inv oice amount as  

the e ffect  o f  discounting is  immater ia l .   

(19)Derecogni t ion of  financia l  l iab il i t ies  

A f inancia l  l iab il i ty is  derecognized when the ob liga tion speci f ied in the contract  is  ei ther  

discharged or  cancel led or  expires.  

(20)Employee benefi ts  

A.  Short - term employee benefi ts   

Short - term employee benefi t s  are measured at  the undiscounted amount of the benefi t s  

expected to  be pa id in respect  o f  service rendered by employees in a  per iod and should be 

recognized as expenses in that  per iod when the emplo yees render  service .  

B. Pensions   

For  defined  contr ibution plan,  the contr ibutions  are recognized as pension expenses when they 

are due  on an accrua l  basis.  Prepaid  contr ibutions a re recognized as an asse t  to  the extent  o f a  

cash re fund or  a  reduct ion in t he future payments.  

C. Employees’ compensation and di rec tors ’ remunerat ion  

Employees ’ compensa tion and directors ’ remuneration are recognized  as expenses and l iab il i t ies ,  

provided tha t  such recogni t ion i s  required under  legal  or  construc tive  obligat ion an d  those  

amounts can be re l iably es t imated .  Any d iffe rence be tween the reso lved amounts and the  

subsequently ac tual  dis t r ibuted  amounts i s  accounted for  as changes in es t imates.  I f  employee  

compensat ion i s  dis tr ibuted by shares,  the Co mpany calcula tes the n umber of shares based on 

the c losing pr ice  at  the  previous day of  the  board meet ing reso lut ion.  

(21)Employee share -based payment  

For  the equity -set t led share -based payment ar rangements ,  the employee services rece ived are 

measured a t  the fa ir  va lue of the e qui ty instruments granted at  the grant  date,  and are recognized 

as compensa tion cost  over  the  vest ing per iod,  wi th  a  corresponding adjus tment  to  equi ty.  The fa ir  

va lue  of the equi ty ins truments granted  shal l  re f lec t  the impact  o f  market  vest ing condi t ions and 

non-vest ing condi t ions.  Compensation cost  i s  subject  to  adjustment  based on the service condit ions 

that  a re expected to  be sa t i s fied and the est imates o f the number o f equi ty ins truments tha t  are 

expected to  vest  under  the  non -market  ves t ing condit ions  at  each balance sheet  date.  Ul t imate ly,  

the amount  o f  compensation cost  recognized  i s  based  on the  number o f  equity inst ruments  tha t  

eventua lly vest .  

(22)Income tax  

A. The tax expense for  the per iod  compr ises  cur rent  and  deferred tax.  Tax i s  recognized in  p rof i t  

or  loss,  except  to  the extent  that  i t  re la tes to  i tems recognized in other  comprehensive inco me 

or  i tems recognized d irec t ly in equity,  in which cases the tax i s  recognized in o ther  

comprehensive income or  equi ty.  

B.  The current  income tax charge  i s  ca lculated on the  basis  o f the  tax laws  enacted  or  substant ive ly 

enacted a t  the  end of the  f inancia l  repor t ing per iod in the countr ies where the Company opera te  

and  generate  taxable  income.  Management per iodica lly eva lua tes posit ions taken in tax re turns  

wi th  respec t  to  s i tua tions in accordance wi th app licable tax regulat ions.  I t  estab li shes provisions  

where  appropr iate  based  on the amounts expected to  be pa id to  the tax authori t ies.  An addi t ional  

tax i s  levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and i s  recorded as  inco me tax expense in  

the year  the shareholders reso lve to  re tain  the  earnings.  

C.  Deferred  income tax i s  recognized,  using the ba lance sheets l iabi l i ty method,  on temporary 

diffe rences  ar is ing be tween the tax bases  o f asse ts  and l iabi l i t ies  and the ir  carrying amounts  in  

the separate  f inancia l  s tatements.  Ho wever,  the deferred income tax is  not  accounted for  i f  i t  

ar i ses from init ia l  recogni t ion of good will  or  o f an asse t  or  l iab il i ty in a  transac tion o ther  than 

a business co mbination tha t  a t  the  t ime of  the t ransac tion affec ts ne ither  account ing nor  taxable  

prof i t  or  loss.  Deferred income tax i s  provided on temporary di fferences ar i sing on investments  

in  subsidiar ies and associa tes,  excep t  where the t iming of the reversa l  o f the temporary 
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difference i s  control led by the Company and i t  is  probable that  the temporary di fference wi l l  

not  reverse in the foreseeable future.  Deferred income tax i s  determined using tax rates that  

have been enacted or  substant ial ly enacted by the end of the financial  report ing per iod and are  

expected to  apply when the related deferred income tax asset  i s  real ized or  the deferred  income 

tax l iab il i ty i s  set t led.   

D.  Defer red income tax assets are recognized  only to  the extent  that  i t  i s  probable  that  future 

taxab le prof i t  wi l l  be available  aga ins t  which the temporary d ifferences can be uti l ized.  At the  

end  of the f inancia l  report ing per iod ,  unrecognized and  recognized deferred income tax assets  

are reassessed .  

E.  Current  inco me tax asse ts  and  l iab il i t ies are  offse t  and t he  net  amount  i s  reported in the  ba lance  

shee ts when there  i s  a  lega lly enforceab le r ight  to  offse t  the recognized amounts  and there i s  an 

intention to  se t t le  on a  net  bas is or  real ize the asset  and se t t le  the l iabil i ty s imul taneously.  

Deferred income tax assets and  l iabi l i t ies are o ffse t  on the  balance  shee ts  when the enti ty has  

the lega lly enforceable  r ight  to  offset  current  tax asse ts aga inst  current  tax l iab il i t ies and they 

are levied by the  same taxa tion author i ty on ei ther  the  same ent i ty or  diffe rent  enti t ies  tha t  

in tend to  se t t le  on a ne t  bas is  or  real ize the asse t  and set t le  the l iabi l i ty s imul taneously.  

(23)Share cap ital  

A. Ord inary shares  are c lass i fied as equity.  Incremental  cos ts d irect ly a t tr ibutable to  the issue of  

new shares o r  s tock op tions are shown in equity as a  deduction,  ne t  o f tax,  f rom the proceeds.  

B.  The Company’s  own equity ins truments repurchased ( treasury stock)  are recognized at  

repurchase cost  and deducted fro m equi ty.  Any d ifference between the carrying amount and  

considera t ion i s  recognized in equi ty.  

(24)Dividends  

Dividends are recorded  in the Company ’s  financia l  statements in the per iod in which they are  

approved by the Company’s  shareholders.  Cash dividends are recorded as l iab il i t ies;  stock 

dividends  are  recorded  as s tock d ividends to  be dis tr ibuted  and  are  reclassi f ied to  ordinary shares  

on the e ffect ive date  o f new shares i ssuance .  

(27)Revenue recogni t ion  

A.  Sale o f co mmodi ty  

(a)The main business i tems of the Company are  design,  research and development,  productio n 

and sa les are appl ied to  "optical  f iber  communica tion,  4G/5G mobi le  communicat ion base  

stat ion interconnection,  cloud data  center,  3D Sensing/Near -Field  Sensing/Flood I l lumination ”  

Vert ica l  Cavity Sur face Emit t ing Laser  (VCSEL),  Edge  laser  (FP /  DFB),  photod iode (PIN /  

PINTIA)" ,  inc luding components,  sub -modules,  Light  engine /AOC and other  types of products.  

Sales are recognized when contro l  o f the  products has transferred ,  be ing when the products  

are del ivered to  the customer,  the custo mer has ful l  d iscret ion ove r  the channel  and pr ice to  

se l l  the  products ,  and  there is  no unful fi l led obliga tion that  could  a ffec t  the customer ’s  

accep tance of  the  products.  Delivery occurs when the  products have  been shipped to  the  

spec i fic  loca tion,  the r i sks o f  obso lescence  and  lo ss have been transfer red to  the customer,  

and ei ther  the customer  has accepted  the p roducts in accordance wi th the sales contract ,  or  

the Company has object ive evidence tha t  a l l  cr i ter ia  fo r  accep tance have  been sa t i s fied.  

(b)As the t ime interva l  between t he transfer  o f committed goods or  service and the payment o f  

cus tomer  does  not  exceed one  year,  the  Company does no t  adjus t  the  transac tion pr ice  to  

ref lect  the t ime va lue of  money.  

(c)Receivab le i s  recognized when the  goods  are  del ivered  as this  i s  the  po int  in  t ime tha t  the  

considera t ion i s  uncondi t iona l  because only the passage of t ime i s  required before the payment  

is  due.  

B.  Service  revenue  

The Company provides wafer  OEM services.  Revenue from providing services i s  recognised in 

the account ing per iod i n  which the services are rendered.  Revenue from a f ixed -pr ice contract  

is  measured by the percentage of the actua l  services per formed as o f the balance shee t  date to  

the to ta l  services to  be  per formed.  The customer pays  a t  the t ime speci f ied in the payment  

schedule.  I f  the services rendered exceed the payment,  a  contrac t  asse t  i s  recognised.  I f  the  

payments exceed the services rendered,  a  contract  l iab il i ty i s  recognised .  
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C. Costs o f  obta ining customer contracts  

Although the incrementa l  costs incurre d by the Company in ob taining the  customer contract  are  

expected to  be  recoverable,  the  relevant  contrac t  per iod is  less than one  year  so  such costs  are  

recognized as expenses when incurred .  

5 .CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTIO N 

UNCERTAINTY  

The preparat ion of these separate  financial  s tatements requires management to  make cr i t ical  

judgements in applying the Co mpany ’s  account ing pol ic ies and make cr i t ical  assumpt ions at  the end 

of the f inancia l  report ing per iod and es t imates conc erning future events.  Assumpt ions and est imates 

may d iffer  f rom the  actua l  resul ts  and  are cont inual ly eva luated and adjus ted  based  on histor ical  

experience and other  fac tors ,  and the rela ted informat ion i s  addressed below:   

(1)Cr it ica l  judgments in  applyi ng the  Company’s account ing po lic ies  

None.   

(2)Cr it ica l  account ing est imates and assumptions  

A.  Impairment assessment  o f proper ty,  plant  and  equipment  

In the process o f assess ing impairment o f proper ty,  plant  and equipment,  the Company rel ies on 

subject ive  judgement to  determine the standalone cash flo ws,  useful  l ives o f assets and probable  

future revenues and  expenses fo r  a  par t icular  group of assets based  on the usage pa ttern o f the  

asse ts and the charac ter i st ics o f the asse ts ,  and any changes in est imate s result ing from changes  

in economic condit ions or  the Group 's  strategy may result  in s igni f icant  impairment in the future .  

As of  December 31,  2024,  the carrying amount o f property,  p lant  and equip ment  was $342 , 069.  

B.  Evaluat ion of inventor ies   

The Company’s inventor ies are sta ted a t  the lo wer of cost  and real izab le va lue.  Due to  the rapid  

technology innovation,  the Company evaluates the amounts o f normal inventory consumption,  

obsolete  inventor ies or  inventor ies without market  se l l ing va lue a t  the end of the financial  

report ing per iod ,  and wr i tes down the cost  o f inventor ies to  the ne t  rea l izable value.  The  

va lua tion of inventor ies  is  subjec t  to  es t imat ion uncertainty due to  manual  judgement and i s  

therefore subject  to  signi ficant  changes.  

As of  December 31,  2024,  the carrying amount o f inventor ies was $2 27,943.   

6.DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS  

(1)Cash and cash equiva lents   
   December 31, 2024      December 31, 2023   

Cash on hand and petty cash  $                 20   $                 20  

Checking accounts and demand deposits               112,239                110,036  

Time deposits               174,009                 82,917  

Total  $            286,268   $            192,973  

 

A. The Company transac ts wi th a  var iety o f f inancia l  inst i tut ion s a l l  wi th high cred it  qua li ty  

to  disperse credi t  r i sk,  so  i t  expects  tha t  the  probabil i ty o f counterpar ty defaul t  is  remote.  

B.  The Co mpany has  no cash and cash and cash equiva lents p ledged to  o thers.  

(2)Financial  assets  measured  at  amor tized cost  

 

         Items            December 31, 2024      December 31, 2023    

 Non-current items:  

  

   Demand deposits  $              7,000   $             31,826  
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   Time deposits                34,089                  8,880  

   Total   $             41,089   $             40,706  

 

A. Financia l  asse ts a t  amor tized cost  i s  recognized in the p rofi t  or  loss shown as fol lows:  
 

      2024             2023       

Interest income  $          300   $          445  

 

B. As of December 31,  202 4 and 2023 ,  wi thout  taking into  account any co llate ral  held or  

other  cred it  enhancements,  the maximum exposure to  cred it  r i sk in respect  o f the amount 

that  bes t  represents the  Company ’s  financial  assets a t  amor tized cost  were carrying 

amounts .  

C. Please see Note 8  how the Company  provides f inancia l  assets a t  amor tized cost  as a  

pledged col latera l .  

(3)Accounts receivable  

    December 31, 2024      December 31, 2023   

Accounts receivable  $             87,626   $            106,009  

Accounts receivable from related parties                  672                  2,308  
 

               88,298                108,317  

Less: Loss allowance                     -  (               7,350) 

  $             88,298   $            100,967  

 

A. The ageing ana lys is of accounts  receivable  i s  as fo l lo ws：  

 
   December 31, 2024      December 31, 2023   

Not past due  $             86,828   $             96,152  

Less than 30 days past due                 1,470                  4,422  

Between 31 and 90 days past due                      -                    397  

Between 91 and 180 days past due                      -                      -  

More than 181 days past due                      -                  7,346  

  $             88,298   $            108,317  

 

The ageing analys is above was  based on pas t  due date.  

B.  As of December  31,  202 4 and  2023,  accounts  receivable  was  a l l  f rom contrac ts wi th 

customers.  As of January 1,  202 3,  the ba lance of rece ivab les from contrac ts wi th  

customers amounted  to  $ 127,558.  

C.  As of December 31,  202 4 and 2023 ,  wi thout  taking into  account any co llate ral  held or  

other  cred it  enhancements,  the maximum exposure to  cred it  r i sk in respect  o f the amount 

that  best  represents the Company ’s  accounts  rece ivab le were carrying amounts o f 

accounts rece ivab le.  

D.  Informat ion about credit  r i sk o f accounts  receivab le is  provided  in Note 12(2) .  

(4) Inventor ies  
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                         December 31, 2024                          

 

        Cost              Allowance         Carrying amount   

Raw materials 
 $         95,698  ($         37,425)  $         58,273  

Work in process 
           60,614  (           3,216)            57,398  

Finished goods 
          176,230  (          63,958)           112,272  

  $        332,542  ($        104,599)  $        227,943  

 
 

                         December 31, 2023                           
 

        Cost               Allowance         Carrying amount   

Raw materials 
 $        119,231  ($         39,535)  $         79,696  

Work in process 
           64,321  (           5,115)            59,206  

Finished goods 
          198,934  (          43,787)           155,147  

  $        382,486  ($         88,437)  $        294,049  

 

Inventory costs recognized as an expense for  the  current  per iod are  as fo l lo ws：  

           2024                  2023        

Cost of inventories sold  $            464,525   $            521,020  

Evaluation loss                 21,216                  5,953  

Capacity difference                12,251                  9,244  

Income from sales of scraps (               1,229)                     -  
 

 $            496,763   $            536,217  

 

(5)Investments accounted for  us ing equity method/non -current  l iab il i t ies  

 
   December 31, 2024      December 31, 2023   

Subsidiaries： 

  

  TrueLight(B.V.I.)Ltd.  $            127,197   $            188,242  

  YLTLink Technology Corporation (              40,491) (              20,876) 

Associate： 

  

  Optomedia Technology Inc.                28,427                 25,231  

  $            115,133   $            192,597  

 

A. Deta i l s  o f the Company’s  subsidiar ies are provided in Notes 4(3)  o f the Company ’s  consol idated 

f inancia l  s tatements as of and for  the year  ended December 31,  202 4.  Due to  the cont inuous  

loss o f the subs id iar ies ,  and  the recoverable amount  the Co mpany assessed was expected to  be 

lower  than carrying amount ,  the Company recognized the  goodwil l  ar i s ing from the  business 

combination of  $11,292 as impairment loss in 2024.   

B.  The carrying amount  of the Company ’s  interes ts  in al l  individually immater ia l  associates and  

the Company’s  share o f the operat ing result s  are  summarized be low:  

       December 31, 2024          December 31, 2023      
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      Associate         Carrying amount   Ownership%   Carrying amount   Ownership% 

Optomedia Technology Inc.  $    28,427   31.50%   $    25,231   29.94%  

 
  

  

           2024                      2023            

Profit for the period  $                  2,782   $                  1,461  

Total comprehensive income  $                  2,782   $                  1,461  

 

(6)Property,  plant  and equipment  

 

                        2024                         

January 1    Buildings     Machinery       Others        Total     

Cost  $   840,468   $ 1,836,277   $    57,295   $ 2,734,040  
Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment (    616,938) (  1,742,948) (     27,236) (  2,387,122) 

  $   223,530   $    93,329   $    30,059   $   346,918  

     

January 1  $   223,530   $    93,329   $    30,059   $   346,918  

Acquisitions          185        18,483        38,223        56,891  

Disposals            -             -  (        379) (        379) 

Transfers            -        24,173  (     24,173)            -  

Depreciation (     24,709) (     36,238) (        414) (     61,361) 

December 31  $   199,006   $    99,747   $    43,316   $   342,069  
     

December 31     

Cost  $   840,653   $ 1,694,860   $    70,139   $ 2,605,652  
Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment (    641,647) (  1,595,113) (     26,823) (  2,263,583) 

  $   199,006   $    99,747   $    43,316   $   342,069  

 
 

                        2023                         

January 1    Buildings     Machinery       Others        Total     

Cost  $   844,074   $ 1,811,660   $    29,458   $ 2,685,192  
Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment (    588,392) (  1,705,972) (     27,122) (  2,321,486) 

  $   255,682   $   105,688   $     2,336   $   363,706  

     

January 1  $   255,682   $   105,688   $     2,336   $   363,706  

Acquisitions          249        26,534        39,392        66,175  

Transfers          345        10,750  (     11,095)            -  

Depreciation (     32,746) (     49,643) (        574) (     82,963) 

December 31  $   223,530   $    93,329   $    30,059   $   346,918  
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December 31     

Cost  $   840,468   $ 1,836,277   $    57,295   $ 2,734,040  
Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment (    616,938) (  1,742,948) (     27,236) (  2,387,122) 

  $   223,530   $   93,329   $    30,059  $   346,918  

 

A. No interes t  expense  was  cap i tal ized  on property,  plant  and equipment.  

B.  The signi ficant  co mponents o f the Company ’s bui lding includ ing bui lding and anci l lary 

equipment are depreciated at  a  ra te  o f  40 years and  5~10 years respect ive ly.  

C.  Refer  to  Note 8  for  the Co mpany ’s  proper ty,  p lant  and equipment pledged  to  o thers.  

(7)Leasing arrangements - lessee  

A. The Company leases land and rental  contracts are typ ica lly made for  per iods o f 22 years.  Lease 

terms are  negot ia ted on an individual  bas is  and contain  a  wide range of  di fferent  terms a nd  

condit ions.  The lease agreements  do not  impose  covenants ,  but  leased  assets may not  be used  

as securi ty for  borro wing purposes.  

B.  The carrying amount of r ight -o f-use asse ts and the deprec ia t ion expense are as fol lo ws：  

 
           Carrying amount            

   December 31, 2024     December 31, 2023   

Land  $        105,811   $        112,601  

 

 
          Depreciation expense          

 
        2024              2023       

Land  $          6,790   $          6,790  

 

C. For  the years ended  Dece mber 31,  2024 and 2023,  the addi t ions to  r ight -o f-use asse ts  were $0 

both .  

D. The information on prof i t  or  loss re lat ing to  lease contrac t  as fo l lo ws：  

 
      2024               2023       

Items of profit or loss affected 
  

Interest expense on lease liabilities  $          1,632   $          1,724  

 

E. The Company's  total  cash out f low for  leases were $7 ,881  both in FY2024 and FY2023 .  

(8)Leasing arrangements - lessor  

A.  The Company leased par t  o f  the plant  in  2021  and 2024  for  a  per iod of 3  years ,  and  restr ic ted  

the lessee from sublet t ing,  leas ing,  assigning or  using the subjec t  matter  o f the lease in any 

other  d isguised way dur ing the lease  pe r iod .   

B.  For  the years ended December 31,  202 4 and  2023,  the Company recognized renta l  income o f  

$5,828 and $9,324,  respect ively,  and no var iable lease payment.  

C.  At December 31,  202 4 and 2023,  the Company’s  lease payments receivab le based on matur i ty  

date were l is ted as fol lows:  

 

 
 December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023  
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 2024   $              -   $          2,331  

 2025              4,662                  -  

 2026              4,662                  -  

 2027              1,166                  -  

Total  $         10,490   $          2,331  

 

(9)Intangible  assets  
 

                  Software                   

January 1          2024                 2023          

Cost  $             19,734   $             19,621  
Accumulated amortization 

 and impairment (              19,643) (              18,749) 

  $                 91   $                872  

   

January 1  $                 91   $                872  

Addition                   112                    113  

Amortization expense (                  47) (                 894) 

December 31  $                156   $                 91  
   

December 31   

Cost  $             19,846   $             19,734  
Accumulated amortization 

 and impairment (              19,690) (              19,643) 

  $                156   $                 91  

 

 

A.  Detai l s  o f  amor tizat ion of intangib le are as fol lo ws:  

          2024                 2023          

Administrative expenses  $                 47   $                138  

Research and development expenses                     -                    756  
 

 $                 47   $                894  

 

B. The Co mpany has no  intangible assets p ledged to  others.  

 

(10)Short - term loans  

No short - term loans o f the Co mpany a t  December 31,  2024 .  

      Type of loans         December 31,2023  Interest rate range    Pledged assets  

Bank unsecured loans  $          420  2.395% None 

Bank secured loans         127,000  2.527% 
Bank deposits, 

Building 
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 $      127,420   

 

 

A. The  Co mpany’s  unused credi t  l ine  for  short - term loans  were  $582,060  and $446 ,058 at  

December 31,  2024 and 2023,  respec tive ly.  

B. Please re fer  to  Note  8  for  detai ls  on the co llateral  provided for  borrowings.  

C.  The interest  expenses recognized in the income sta tement for  the years 202 4  and 2023  

were $2 ,321 and $5,978 ,  respect ive ly.  

(11)Other  payables ( including re lated par t ies)  

 
 

 December 31, 2024   December 31,2023  

Processing fee 

Salaries and bonus payable 

 $        90,773 

          21,073  

 $       136,438  

          20,967 

Payable on employees and directors remuneration             347              347  

Payable on machinery and equipment            4,901            19,101  

Others           68,578            67,872  

  $       185,672   $       244,725  

 



  

~26~ 

(12)Long-term loans  

           Institutions                   Loan period        Collateral  December 31,2024   December 31,2023  

Taiwan Business Bank unsecured loan 2023.03.30～2028.03.30 None  $            -   $        6,000  

Taiwan Business Bank unsecured loan 2021.01.04～2026.01.04  None               -           20,833  

Hua Nan Commercial Bank unsecured loan 2017.12.18～2024.12.18  None               -            6,000  

Hua Nan Commercial Bank unsecured loan 2018.05.23～2025.05.23  None               -            5,667  

Hua Nan Commercial Bank secured loan 2024.07.08～2026.07.08  Demand deposit          70,000                -  

First Commercial Bank unsecured loan 2022.12.30～2027.12.30  None               -           12,500  

First Commercial Bank unsecured loan 2023.01.19～2028.01.19  None               -           12,500  

First Commercial Bank unsecured loan 2023.01.31～2028.01.31  None               -           12,500  

First Commercial Bank unsecured loan 2023.02.24～2028.02.24  None               -           12,500  

E.Sun Commercial Bank unsecured loan 2022.09.01～2025.03.01  None           8,190           40,494   
           78,190          128,994  

Less: Long-term loans, current portion  

(stated in other current liabilities)   (         8,190) (        64,886)  

   $       70,000   $       64,108  

Interest rate range 
   2.16%~2.40%   2.040%~2.595%  

 

A. The Company’s  unused cred it  l ine for  long -term loans were $50,000 and  $0 at  December 31,  202 4 and 2023,  respect ive ly.  

B.  Refer  to  Note 8  for  colla teral  for  long -term loans .
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(13)Pensions  

A.Effec tive from July 1 ,  2005,  the  Company has es tab li shed  a  def ined  contr ibution pension p lan 

( the “New P lan”)  under  the Labor  Pension Act ( the  “Act”) ,  cover ing al l  regular  employees  wi th  

R.O.C.  na tional i ty.  Under  the  New Plan,  the Company cont r ibutes monthly an amount based on 

6% of the employees ’ monthly salar ies and wages to  the employees ’ ind ividual  pension accounts  

at  the  Bureau of  Labor  Insurance.  The benefi t s  accrued  are  pa id monthly or  in lump sum in l ine 

wi th  the  amounts  in employees ’ ind ividual  accounts and the amounts o f accumulated  gains.   

B.The Company has es tabli shed the “Ret irement Regulat ions for  Appointed Managers ” which i s  

applicable  to  managers wi th  R.O.C nat ionali ty,  and the Co mpany sha ll  assess  and pay ret irement  

benefi ts  in accordance  wi th  the  Regulat ions .  

C.The Company recognized pension costs under  the defined contr ibution plan aforementioned  

amounted  to  $18,568  and  $24,507 for  the years ended December 31,  202 4 and 2023,  respec tively.   

(14)Share -based payment  

The Company had no share-based payment arrangement in FY2024.  

A.For the year  ended December 31,  2023,  the Company ’s share -based  payment arrangements  

were as fol lows:   

Type of arrangement     Grant date  

Quantity 

granted 

(thousand 

shares)  Contract period  Vesting conditions  
Issuing new shares reserved for 

subscription by employees 
2023.07.06 624 NA Immediately vested 

 

B.On May 10,  2023,  the  board of di rec tors o f the Co mpany reso lved to  issue  20,000 thousand  

ordinary shares  through a cash increase,  and in accordance wi th Ar ticle  267 of the Company 

Law, no  more  than 15% of  the  shares were  reserved  for  employees  o f the  company and i t s  

subsid iar ies to  subscr ibe.  The employees gave  up the subscr ip t ion or  subscr ibed for  the  

insuff ic ient  number o f  shares and authorized the cha irma n to  contac t  a  speci f ic  person to  

subscr ibe a t  the i ssuance pr ice.  

C.Fair  va lue information of a forement ioned share -based payment  i s  se t  out  belo w:  

   Fulfilling Unit 

    Type of arrangement        Grant date  Fair value of share    Price    Fair value   

Issuing new shares reserved for subscription 

by employees 
2023.07.06  $  24.20 (in dollar)  $  18.00  

(in dollar) 

 $     6.20 

(in dollar)  

 

D.Expenses der ived from share -based  payment mentioned above i s  as below:  

 

         2023       

Settlement of equity   $          3,621  

 

(15)Capital  share  

As of December 31,  202 4,  the Company’s  author ized capi ta l  was $1,500,000,  consist ing of  

150,000 thousand shares o f common stock,  and  the paid - in capi tal  was  $1,114,747 wi th a  par  

va lue of  $10 ( in  dollars)  per  share.   Al l  proceeds from shares i ssued have been col lec ted.  

The movements  in the number o f the Company's  common stocks  outstanding are  as fol lows:  

 

 

  
Unit: thousand shares 
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        2024                   2023         
January 1  $             96,475   $             76,475  
Issuing new shares                15,000                 20,000  

December 31 
 $            111,475   $             96,475  

 

On May 10 ,2023,  the board of directors o f the Company reso lved to  issue ordinary shares  

through a  cash  increase,  which took effec t  on June 16,  2023 by the Financia l  Regulatory  

Commiss ion,  wi th a  total  issuance of 20,000 thousand shares and an i ssue pr ice o f $18 ( in do llars)  

per  share.  

On May 24,  2023 ,  the Annual  Shareholders Meet ing reso lved to  issue a  total  o f  up 15,000  

thousand shares o f common s tock,  and authorized the Board of Directors to  raise and issue  the  

shares in one or  more instal lments (up to  a  maximum of f ive ins tal lments)  wi thin one year  f rom 

the da te  o f the reso lut ion of the Shareholders  Meeting .   On March 6,  2024,  the Board  of  

Directors  o f the Company approved  the ins ta l lments fro m 11201~11205 pr iva te  placement  o f  

common s tock.  The domestic  cash capi ta l  increase wi thin the l imi t  o f 15,000,000 shares .  The  

subscr ip t ion pr ice per  share for  the pr iv ate placement i s  NT$30.4,  and  the es t imated  proceeds  

are NT$456,000.   Record date  o f pr ivate p lacement was 2024/3/15,  and regist rat ion changing 

has been comple ted.   Except for  the res tr ict ions on c irculat ion and transfer  s t ipulated by the  

Secur i t ies and Exchange  Law, the r ights and obl igat ions o f this pr iva te placement o f ord inary 

shares  can only be  app l ied for  OTC li st ing and  trad ing 3  years  a f ter  the da te o f  de livery and 

af ter  the public  i ssuance .  The res t  are the same as other  issued  ordinary shares.  

 (16)Capi ta l  surplus  

Pursuant  to  the  R.O.C.  Company Law,  capital  surp lus  ar is ing from paid - in capi tal  in excess o f  

par  value on i ssuance of  common s tocks and donations can be used to  cover  accumula ted def ic i t  

or  to  i ssue  new s tocks o r  cash to  shareholders  in  proport ion to  the ir  share o wnership,  provided  

that  the Company has no accumulated def ici t .  Fur ther,  the R.O.C.  Secur i t ies and Exchange  Act  

requires  tha t  the  amount  o f capi tal  surplus to  be capi tal ized mentioned above  should no t  exceed 

10% of the paid in capi tal  each year.  Capi ta l  surplus should not  be used to  cover  accumulated  

def ic i t  unless the lega l  reserve i s  insuff ic ient .  

 
                             2024                             

  Changes in   

  ownership interest Changes in equity    

Share premium   in subsidiaries     of associates       Total     

January 1  $    336,237   $         6,180   $         -   $    342,417  

Deficit compensation (     336,237) (          6,180) 
 

(     342,417) 

Issuing new shares       306,000                 -             -        306,000  

Changes in equity of associates 

and joint ventures accounted for 

using equity method             -                 -           311            311  

December 31  $    306,000   $             -   $       311   $    306,311  

 

 
                        2023                            

  Changes in  

  ownership interest   

  Share premium     in subsidiaries          Total        

January 1  $       173,917   $         6,326   $         180,243  

Issuing new shares          158,451                 -             158,451  

Share-based payment            3,869                 -               3,869  

Issuing new shares reserved 

for subscription by employees                -  (            146) (              146) 
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December 31  $       336,237   $         6,180   $         342,417  

 

(17)Reta ined earnings(Accumulated  def ici t)  

A.  Under  the Company’s  Ar ticles o f Incorporat ion,  the current  year ’s prof i t  a f ter  income tax,  shal l  

f i rs t  be o ffset  against  pr ior  years ’ opera t ing losses and then 10% of the remaining amount shal l  

be se t  as ide  as legal  reserve.  When such legal  reserve amounts  to  the total  authorized  cap ital ,  

the Company sha ll  not  be subject  to  this  requirement.  The Company may then appropria te  or  

reverse a  cer ta in amount  as spec ial  reserve according to  the demand for  the business or  re levant  

regula t ions.  After  the dis tr ibution of earnings,  the remaining earnings and pr ior  year ’s  

undis tr ibuted earnings may be appropr ia ted according to  a  resolution of  the Board of Direc tors  

adopted in the shareholders ’ meeting.   

B. The Company adopts  the  balance  and s tabi l i ty pr incip les o f  dividends po licy and  takes  into  

account  future cash f low needs,  financial  plans  and o ther  factors,  and sat i s fies  the shareholders ’ 

demand for  cash;  therefore,  the per centage of  distr ibut ion of d ividends  sha ll  be more than 5%,  

and the percentage  of cash d ividends sha ll  be more than 10%.   The d is tr ibution of  dividends 

sha ll  not  be made  as the accumulated reta ined  earnings  ava ilab le  for  d is tr ibution i s  less than 

10% of the Company’s  paid -in  cap ital .  

C.  Except for  covering accumulated def ic i t  or  issuing new s tocks or  cash to  shareholders in  

proport ion to  their  share ownership,  the lega l  reserve sha ll  no t  be  used  for  any o ther  purpose .  

The use  o f legal  reserve for  the issuan ce  of s tocks or  cash to  shareholders  in  proport ion to  the ir  

share o wnership  i s  permi t ted,  provided that  the dis tr ibution of the  reserve is  l imi ted  to  the  

port ion in excess  o f 25% of the Company ’s  paid- in cap ital .  

D.  In accordance wi th the  regulat ions ,  the Company shal l  set  aside  specia l  reserve from the debit  

balance on other  equi ty i tems a t  the balance shee t  date before d istr ibut ing earnings.  When deb it  

balance on o ther  equi ty i tems i s  reversed subsequently,  the reversed  amount  could  be  inc luded  

in  the  dis tr ibutable earnings.  

E.  The Company’s  shareholders ’ meeting resolved  2022 def ic i t  appropriat ion on May 24,  2023.   

The Company’s  shareholders ’ meeting resolved  to  compensate defici t  wi th  cap ital  surplus o f 

$342,417,  legal  reserve of $433 and spec ia l  reserve  of $346,743  on May 30,  2024.  

(18)Other  equity  

 
             Foreign currency translation               

         2024                 2023          

January 1 ($             15,643) ($              9,357) 

Currency translation difference-

subsidiaries                 5,059  (               6,286) 

December 31 ($             10,584) ($             15,643) 

 

(19)Opera ting revenue  

 
        2024                  2023          

Revenue from contracts with customers  $            556,137   $            622,423  

 

The Company’s  revenue ,  which i s  der ived fro m transfer  o f goods  and  services  at  a  point  o f  

t ime,  i s  subcategorized into  the  fol lowing product  categories and geographic areas:  

Product  ca tegory:  

 
         2024                  2023         

Chips and components  $            374,655   $            455,407  

Optical transmission and 

 connection modules               154,264                153,607  
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Others                27,218                 13,409  
 

 $            556,137   $            622,423  

 
Geographic areas :  

         2024                  2023          

Taiwan  $            245,448   $            197,981  

Europe and America                142,414                136,659  

Others in Asia               111,309                150,425  

China                56,966                137,358  

  $            556,137   $            622,423  

 

Revenue for  the  years 202 4 and 2023 were  ca tegorized by product  applicat ion,  wi th  

percentages as  fol lows : Broadband  Network 10% and 31%, 4G/5G Base  Stat ion 

Interconnect ion 33% and  25%, Cloud Data Center  1 3% and 11%, Sensing applicat ion  38% 

and  29%,  and Other  6% and  4%.   

(20)Interes t  income  

          2024                  2023         

Interest income from bank deposits  $              6,636   $              3,768  
Interest income from financial assets 

measured at amortized cost                   300                    445  

Others                 1,820                      -  

  $              8,756   $              4,213  

 

(21)Other  income  

          2024                  2023         

Rent income  $              6,406   $             13,169  

Others                 1,074                  2,191  

  $              7,480   $             15,360  

 

(22)Other  ga ins  and losse s  

          2024                  2023         

Net currency exchange gains(losses)  $              8,260   $              2,006  
Gain on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment                 3,446                  3,798  

Impairment of non-financial assets (              11,292)                     -  

Others (               1,019) (               4,288) 

 ($                605)  $              1,516  

 

(23)Finance  cost   

         2024                  2023         
Interest expenses： 
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Bank loans  $              4,364   $              9,720  

Lease liabilities                 1,632                  1,724  

 
 $              5,996   $             11,444  

 

(24)Addi t ional  d isclosures on expenses o f nature   

         2024                 2023          
Employee benefit expenses  $            286,125   $            311,732  

Depreciation                68,151                 89,753  
Amortization                   47                   894  
 

 $            354,323   $            402,379  

 

The above deprec ia t ions  of bo th years inc luded  de prec iat ion recognized in other  net  

losses o f  other  gains and losses.  

(25)Employee benefi t  expenses  

 
         2024                  2023         

Wages and salaries  $            232,243   $            246,043  

Share-based payment                     -                  3,621  

Labor and health insurance                22,578                 25,012  

Pension                18,568                 24,507  

Other personnel expenses                12,736                 12,549  
 

 $            286,125   $            311,732  

 

A.In accordance wi th the Articles o f Incorporat ion of the Co mpany,  rat ios o f dist r ibutable  

prof i t  o f the current  year,  a f ter  covering accumulated def ic i t ,  sha ll  be distr ibuted as  

employees '  compensa tion and direc tors ’ remuneration.  The r a t ios sha ll  be between 4% and  

10% for  employees ’ compensa tion and no less than 4% for  directors ’ remunerat ion.  

B.The Co mpany would not  recognize employees ’ compensa tion and d irectors ’ remunerat ion 

as expenses because of the losses for  the years ended  Decem ber 31,  2024  and 2023.  

C.Informat ion rela ted  to  employees ’ compensa tion and di rec tors ’ remunerat ion sha ll  be  

inquired  at  the  Market  Observa tion Post  System websi te .  

(26)Income tax 

A.  Income tax expense   

(a)Co mponents o f  inco me tax ( inco me) expense:   
 

         2024                    2023         

Current tax： 
  

Total current tax  $                  -   $                  -  

Deferred tax： 
  

Total deferred tax                     -                  4,904  

Income tax expense   $                  -   $              4,904  

 
(b)No income tax expense i s  re lated to  components o f  other  comprehensive income.  
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(c)No income tax expense i s  re lated to  debi ted or  credi ted equi ty.  

B.  Reconcil iat ion be tween income tax expense and accounting loss：  
 

      2024             2023       

Tax calculated based on profit before tax and 

statutory tax rate ($        47,850) ($        77,107) 

Origination and reversal of temporary differences           16,845            36,619  
Effect from loss based on tax regulation 

unrecognized as deferred tax assets            31,005            40,488  
Effect on changes of realizable deferred tax 

assets or liabilities                -             4,904  

Income tax expense (income)  $             -   $         4,904  

 

C. Deferred  tax or  l iabi l i t ies resul ted from loss based  on tax r egulat ion is  l i s ted be low:  

                          2024                         

    Recognized 

 in other  
  

 
 January 1  

Recognized in       

Profit or loss   
 comprehensive 

 Income    
Recognized       

  in equity   December 31 

Taxable loss  $ 18,581   $       -   $      -   $     -   $18,581  

 

                          2023                      

   

 Recognized 

 in other    

  January 1  
Recognized in       

Profit or loss   
 comprehensive 

 Income    
Recognized       

  in equity   December 31 

Taxable loss  $ 23,485  ($   4,904)  $       -   $     -   $18,581  

 

D.As of December  31,  2024 and 2023,  the exp iry da te o f the tax losses unused are l is ted belo w:  

                                December 31, 2024                                  

Year of loss  

 Loss based on 

 tax regulation    Unused losses  

Loss unrecognized 

 as deferred assets  Expiry date 

2017  $   510,212   $   510,212   $    417,307  2027 

2018      164,906       164,906        164,906  2028 

2019      216,152       216,152        216,152  2029 

2020       89,022        89,022         89,022  2030 

2021      156,461       156,461        156,461  2031 

2022       24,652        24,652         24,652  2032 

2023      202,401       202,401        202,401  2033 

2024      155,023       155,023        155,023  2034 

  $  1,518,829   $  1,518,829   $  1,425,924   
     

                                December 31, 2023                                  

Year of loss 

 Loss based on 

 tax regulation    Unused losses  

Loss unrecognized 

 as deferred assets  Expiry date 
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2017  $   510,212   $   510,212   $    417,307  2027 

2018      164,906       164,906        164,906  2028 

2019      216,152       216,152        216,152  2029 

2020       89,022        89,022         89,022  2030 

2021      156,461       156,461        156,461  2031 

2022       26,739        26,739         26,739  2032 

2023      202,439       202,439        202,439  2033 

  $  1,365,931   $  1,365,931   $  1,273,026   
 

E. Deduct ible  temporary differences  unrecognized as deferred a sse ts :  

     December 31, 2024         December 31, 2023     

Deductible temporary differences  $            504,462   $            420,236  

 

F.  The Company’s income tax re turns have been examined by the tax authori ty through the years  

up to  2022.  

(27)Loss per  share  

                   2024                     

  

 Weighted average 

 number of common 

 shares outstanding   Loss per share  

 Amount after tax  (shares in thousands)     (in dollars)   

Basic and dilutive loss per share    

Loss for the year ($  239,250)         108,475  ($      2.21) 

 

                   2023                    

  

 Weighted average 

 number of common 

 shares outstanding   Loss per share  

 Amount after tax  (shares in thousands)     (in dollars)   

Basic and dilutive loss per share    

Loss for the year ($  390,437)          83,343  ($      4.68) 

 

(28)Supplemental  cash f low information  

Investing act ivi t ies wi th  par t ial  cash co llec t ion and  payments:  
 

         2024                  2023         

Purchase of property, plant  

and equipment  $             56,891   $             66,175  
Add: Opening balance of payable 

 on equipment                19,101                  7,033  
Less: Ending balance of payable 

 on equipment 
(               4,901) (              19,101) 

Cash paid during the year  $             71,091   $             54,107  
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(29)Changes in l iabi l i t ies from f inancing act ivi t ies  

 

 

 Long-term loans 

(including  

 Total liabilities  

from financing  
  Short-term loans   current portion)   Lease liabilities    activities     

January 1, 2024  $   127,420   $         128,994   $   116,652   $     373,066  

Changes in cash flow (    127,420) (           50,804) (      6,249) (      184,473) 

Interest paid            -                   -  (      1,632) (        1,632) 

Other non-cash changes            -                   -         1,632           1,632  

December 31, 2024  $         -   $          78,190   $   110,403   $     188,593  
     

 

 

 Long-term loans 

(including  

 Total liabilities  

from financing  
  Short-term loans   current portion)   Lease liabilities    activities     

January 1, 2023  $   366,651   $         137,157   $   122,809   $     626,617  

Changes in cash flow (    239,231) (            8,163) (      6,157) (      253,551) 

Interest paid            -                   -  (      1,724) (        1,724) 

Other non-cash changes            -                   -         1,724           1,724  

December 31, 2023  $   127,420   $         128,994   $   116,652   $     373,066  

 

7.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACT IONS 

(1)  Names and rela t ionship  of re la ted par t ie s  

                   Name                       Relationship with the Company 

Optomedia Technology Inc. Associate 

Taiwan Mask Corporation 

Individuals with significant influence on the 

Company (Note) 

ZHUHAI FTZ PRORAY CO., LTD.(ZFP) Subsidiary 

YLTLink Technology Corporation (YLT) Subsidiary 
 

Note :Taiwan Mask Corporation i s  the s ingle largest  shareholder  o f the Company wi th a  

shareholding ra t io  o f 12 .11%, which has signi ficant  inf luence on the Company.  

(2)  Signi f icant  t ransac tions and balances wi th re lated par t ies  

A.  Opera ting revenue   

         2024                 2023         
 

  

Subsidiaries  $                40   $              3,035  

Associate                11,332                 13,591  

Total  $             11,372   $             16,626  

 

There  i s  no  signi ficant  diffe rence in the  te rms and  condit ions  for  transact ions  be tween the  

Company and rela ted par t ies or  non -re lated par t ies.  
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B.  Purchases,  process ing fee and  others  

           2024                    2023          

Purchases：   

Subsidiary-YLT  $                5,650   $               16,023  

Processing fee：   

Subsidiary-ZFP                  12,467                   26,843  

Others：   

Subsidiaries-YLT                  19,013                   11,495  

 
 $               37,130   $               54,361  

 

C.  Accounts rece ivab le due  from re la ted par t ies   

 

 
    December 31, 2024          December 31, 2023      

Accounts receivable：   

 
Associate  $                662   $              1,675  

 
Subsidiary-ZFP                    10                      -  

 
Subsidiary-YLT                     -                    633  

 Subtotal                   672                  2,308  

Other receivables：   

 
Subsidiary-ZFP                23,573  22,594  

 
Subsidiary-YLT                 2,871                 67,391  

 
Subtotal                26,444                 89,985  

 Total  $             27,116   $             92,293  

 

The accounts  receivab le due from rela ted  par t ies mainly ar i se  from sa les o f  goods,  

disposa ls and renta ls o f property,  plant  and equipment and suppor t  service .  The transact ion 

term of sa les o f goods i s  about 90 days  a f ter  shipment ,  and terms of  disposa ls and rentals  

of property,  plant  and equipment and support  service are handled in accordance wi th  

mutual  contracts.   The  above accounts rece ivable i s  unsecured in nature and bear s no  

interes t  and  for  which no al lo wance loss.  

D.  Payables to  re lated par t ies   

 

 
    December 31, 2024          December 31, 2023      

Accounts payable:   

 
Subsidiary-YLT  $                  -   $              6,848  

 
Subtotal                     -                  6,848  

Other payables-processing fee: 
  

 
Subsidiary-ZFP                90,773                136,438  

Other payables-others: 
  

 Subsidiary-ZFP                18,901                 18,066  
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Subsidiary-YLT                 2,093                  2,383  

 

Individuals with significant influence 

on the Company                   534                      -  

 Total  $            112,301   $            163,735  

 

The payables to  re lated par t ies  mainly ar i se f rom transact ions o f  purchases ,  p rocessing,  

technica l  suppor t ,  and acquisi t ions o f  equipment  and  R&D mater ia ls .   The transac tion  

terms of purchases ,  processing and acquis i t ion of  R&D mater ia ls  are about 60 days,  which 

were s imi lar  to  those for  third  par t ies.   The terms of service fee and acquisi t ion of  

equipment are handled in accordance wi th mutual  cont rac ts .  The above payables a re bear  

no inte rest .  

E. Property transact ions   

The ga ins  on disposa l  o f  property,  p lant  and equipment and other  asse ts  to  subsid iar ies,  a re  

unreal ized  and transferred to  real ized ga ins  and other  income monthly based  on the useful  

l ives o f  re la ted property,  plant  and equipment and o ther  assets.  The  Company recognized  

real ized  ga ins  on disposal  o f  proper ty,  plant  and equipment $ 2,455  and $ 3,695,  and rea lized  

other  income $19 and $1 ,411 for  the years ended December 31  202 4 and 2023,  respec tively.   

As  of December 31 ,  202 4  and 2023,  the  above  unreal ized  gains  on disposa l  and ot her  income 

are $8,119 and $10,593,  which have been recognized in  the  investments  accounted  for  using  

equity method .  

F.  In 2024  and 2023 ,  t he Company purchased equipment f rom subsid iary -ZFP a t  a  cost  o f $173  

and  $17,252  respect ively.   The  Company purchased  equipment f rom subsid iary -YLT a t  a  

cos t  o f $4,241 in 2024.   

G.  Loans to  re la ted par t ies  

(a)Ending balance   
 December 31, 2024     December 31, 2023   

Subsidiary-YLT  $        95,706   $             -  

 
(b)Interes t  income   

      2024             2023       

Subsidiary-YLT  $         1,820   $             -  

 
The condi t ions for  loans to  rela ted par t ies are that  the interes t  i s  pa id  monthly  a t  an 

annual  interest  ra te  o f 2 . 5%~2.72% afte r  the loan i s  loaned,  and the pr inc ipa l  i s  repa id  

monthly and a t  the maturi ty.   

H.  The Company rented par t  o f p lant  and equipment to  subsidiary -YLT based  on hours o f  use,  

and recognized  rent  incomes $5 ,828 and $12,591 for  the years ended December 31,  202 4  

and  2023,  respect ively.   

(3)Informat ion about remunerat ions to  the major  management  

 
         2024                  2023         

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits  $             23,994   $             22,578  

Severance benefits                     -                  1,015  

Post-employment benefits                 7,318                 12,104  

Share-based payments                     -                    620  

Total  $             31,312   $             36,317  
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8.PLEDGED ASSETS 

The Company’s  asse ts p ledged as  col la tera l  were as fol lows:  
 

             Carrying amount                

         Pledged assets          December 31, 2024   December 31, 2023          Purposes        

Demand deposits (listed in non-current 

financial assets at amortized cost) 

 $          7,000   $         31,826  
Pledged for long-term and 

short-term loans 

Time deposits (listed in non-current 

financial assets at amortized cost) 

           34,089              8,880  Pledged for short-term 

loans, customs duties 

guarantee and lease 

guarantee 

Buildings           166,833            176,865  

Pledged for credit line of  

short-term loan 

  $        207,922   $        217,571   
 

9.SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED CONTRACT COMMITMENTS  

Capital  expendi ture cont racted for  a t  the ba lance  sheet  date  but  no t  ye t  incur red i s  as fol lows:  
 

  December 31, 2024      December 31, 2023    

Property, plant and equipment  $            20,473   $            24,126  

 

10.SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS  

None.  

11.SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE  

None.  

12.OTHERS 

(1)Capital  management  

The object ive o f  cap ital  management i s  to  ensure  the Company can cont inue  to  operate  and grow,  

whi le  op timiz ing deb t  and  equi ty balances to  provide suffic ient  returns to  shareholders.  The  

capi tal  struc ture  management  s tra tegy of  the Company is  ba sed on the  indust ry sca le,  future  

gro wth prospec ts and product  development plans  of our  business,  taking into  account the cyc lical  

f luctuat ions  o f the  industry and  product  l i fe  cycles,  in o rder  to  p lan the necessary product ion 

capac ity and corresponding ca pi tal  expenditures  and de termine  an appropriate  capi ta l  structure 

for  the Company.  The management team of the Company regular ly reviews the capi ta l  s truc ture 

and considers the costs  and r i sks associated with di fferent  cap ital  struc tures.  Genera lly,  the  

Company adopts a  prudent  r i sk management s tra tegy.  

At December 31 ,  202 4 and 2023,  the  Co mpany’ labil i ty rat io  are as fo l lows:  
 

December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023  

Total liabilities  $       436,610   $       682,536  

Total assets        1,393,740         1,417,546  

Liabilities/assets ratio   31%     48%   

 

(2)  Financial  instruments  

 A. Financia l  ins truments by ca tegory   

Financial assets  December 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
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  Financial assets at amortized cost   

    Cash and cash equivalents  $      286,268   $      192,973  

    Financial assets at amortized cost          41,089           40,706  

    Accounts receivable(including related parties)          88,298          100,967  

    Other receivables(including related parties)         124,091           90,314  

    Refundable deposits              75               75  

  $      539,821   $      425,035  
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Financial liabilities  December 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  

  Financial liabilities at amortized cost   

    Short-term loans  $            -   $      127,420  

    Notes payable              50            3,805  

    Accounts payables(including related parties)          17,427           37,247  

    Other payables(including related parties)         185,672          244,725  

    Long-term loans(including current portion)          78,190          128,994  

    Deposit received             890              890  

      $      282,229   $      543,081  

    Lease liabilities    $      110,403   $      116,652  

 

B. Financial  r i sk management  po licies  

The Company’s  operat ing act ivi t ies  expose the Co mpany to  a  var ie ty o f f inancia l  r isks,  

includ ing market  r i sk ( inc luding fore ign exchange  r isk,  pr ice  r isk and  interest  rate  r isk) ,  credi t  

r isk and l iquid ity r isk.  The f inancia l  r i sk management pol ic ies o f  the Company focus on 

minimiz ing any adverse effects on the f inancia l  per formance.  

C.  Nature and degree of signi ficant  financial  r i sks   

The r i sk management work is  carr ied out  by the  f inancia l  uni ts  o f the Company in accordance  

wi th  the po licies  appr oved by the  board  of d irec tors.  The f inancia l  unit s  of  the  Company work  

closely wi th the opera t iona l  uni ts  o f the Company and are responsib le for  ident i fying,  

evalua ting,  and avoiding f inancia l  r i sks.  The f inancial  r i sk management policy i s  regular ly  

revie wed to  re f lect  changes in market  condi t ions  and the  opera t ion of the  Company.  

(a)Market  r i sk   

Fore ign exchange r i sk  

( i)The Company opera tes interna tional ly and i s  exposed to  fore ign exchange r i sk ar i sing 

from the transac tions o f  the  Co mpany used  in  var ious  functional  currency,  p r imari ly  

wi th  respec t  to  the USD, Japanese yen and RMB. Foreign exchange r isk ar i ses f rom 

future  commercial  t ransact ions ,  recognized asse ts  and  l iabi l i t ies ,  and  ne t  investments  

in  fore ign operat ions.   

( i i )The Company fo llo ws the  pr in cip le o f  na tura l  hedging and conducts  hedging based on 

the market  forex condit ions  according to  the funding needs  and  ne t  posi t ions  ( the  

diffe rence be tween fore ign currency asse ts and l iabi l i t ies  posi t ions)  o f each currency.  

When a  short - term imbalance  occ urs,  the  Company wi l l  buy or  sel l  foreign currency at  

the spot  rate  to  ensure tha t  the ne t  exposure  i s  maintained a t  an acceptable leve l .  

( i i i )The Co mpany’s  businesses involve some non -functional  currency operat ions ( the  

Company’s  functional  currency i s  NT D).  The information on asse ts and l iabi l i t ies  

denominated  in  fore ign cur renc ies whose  values  would be mater ia l ly a ffected by the  

exchange rate  fluctuat ions i s  as  fol lows:  

                 December 31, 2024                

 Foreign current amount   Carrying amount  

    (in thousands)    Exchange rate   (NT$ thousand)  

(Foreign currency: 

 functional currency)     

Financial assets    

  Monetary items    



  

~40~ 

    USD：NTD  $       4,340        32.785   $   142,287  

    RMB：NTD          4,347         4.478        19,466  

    Yen：NTD           578        0.2099          121  

Financial liabilities    

  Monetary items    

    USD：NTD  $         496        32.785   $    16,261  

    RMB：NTD         24,492         4.478       109,675  

 
 

                December 31, 2023                 
 

Foreign current amount   Carrying amount  

    (in thousands)    Exchange rate   (NT$ thousand)  

(Foreign currency: 

 functional currency)     

Financial assets    

  Monetary items 
   

    USD：NTD  $       7,437         30.71   $   228,390  

    RMB：NTD          2,803         4.329        12,134  

    Yen：NTD          9,052        0.2175         1,969  

Financial liabilities 
   

  Monetary items 
   

    USD：NTD  $       1,212         30.71   $    37,221  

    RMB：NTD         35,690         4.329       154,502  

 
( iv)Net currency exchange  ( losses)  ga ins ar i sing fro m fore ign exchange  var ia t ion on the 

monetary i tems held  by the Company for  the years ended December 31,  202 4 and 2023  

amounted to  $8,260 and $2,006,  respec tively.  
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(v)Analys is o f foreign cur rency market  r i sk a r is ing fro m signi ficant  foreign exchange 

var ia t ion i s  as fo l lo ws :  

 
                    2024                     

 
               Sensitivity analysis              

 
Degree of  Effect on profit 

 Effect on other 

comprehensive  

  variation      or loss        income    

Foreign currency:  

functional currency     

Financial assets 
  

 

  Monetary items    

    USD：NTD 1.00%  $     1,423   $        -  

    RMB：NTD 1.00%          195            -  

    Yen：NTD 1.00%            1            -  

Financial liabilities   
 

  Monetary items    

    USD：NTD 1.00% ($       163)  $        -  

    RMB：NTD 1.00% (      1,097)           -  

 
 

                    2023                     

 
               Sensitivity analysis              

 
Degree of  Effect on profit 

 Effect on other 

comprehensive  

  variation      or loss        income    

Foreign currency:  

functional currency     

Financial assets 
  

 

  Monetary items    

    USD：NTD 1.00%  $     2,284   $         -  

    RMB：NTD 1.00%          121             -  

    Yen：NTD 1.00%           20             -  

Financial liabilities   
 

  Monetary items    

    USD：NTD 1.00% ($       372)  $         -  

    RMB：NTD 1.00% (      1,545)            -  

 
Price r isk  

The Company has  no equi ty ins truments exposed to  pr ice r i sk in 202 4  and 2023.   

Cash f low and fa ir  va lue  inte rest  rate  r i sk  

( i)The  Company’s  main interes t  rate  r i sk a r i ses f rom short - term loans  and long -term loans  

wi th var iable rates which expose the Company to  cash f low  interest  rate  r i sk.  Dur ing 

the year  ended December 31,  202 4 and 2023,  the Company’s  borrowings a t  var iable 

rates were  denominated in  NTD.  

( i i)The Co mpany's  borrowings are measured a t  amort ized cost  and are repr iced annually  



  

~42~ 

accord ing to  the  contract 's  agr eed-upon interes t  rate .  Therefore,  the Company is  

exposed  to  the r i sk o f future market  interes t  ra te  changes.  

( i i i )When bor rowing ra tes  r i se  or  fal l  by 1%,  whi le  a l l  o ther  fac tors remain constant ,  the  

Company's net  prof i t  a f ter  tax for  the years 202 4  and 2023 wi l l  decrease or  increase by 

$1,252 and $3,305,  respect ively,  mainly due to  the f luc tua tion of interest  expense  

result ing from f loa ting -rate  borro wings.  

(b)Credit  r i sk  

( i)Credi t  r i sk re fers to  the  r i sk o f  financial  loss to  the Company ar is ing from defa ult  by the  

cl ients  or  counterpar t ies  o f f inancia l  ins truments on the contract  obl igat ions.  The main 

factor  is  that  counterpar t ies could no t  repay in ful l  the accounts rece ivable based on the  

agreed terms,  and the cont rac t  cash flo ws of f inancia l  asse ts a t  amort ized cost  which 

were set t led in accordance wi th contrac tual  agreements.  

( i i )The Co mpany manages i t s  cred it  r isk taking into  considerat ion the enti re  group ’s  

concern.  For  banks and  financial  ins t i tut ions ,  only well  ra ted par t ies  are accep ted.   

Accord ing to  the Company’s  credi t  policy,  each opera t ing enti ty in  the Group is  

responsib le  for  managing and analyz ing the credit  r i sk for  each of the ir  new c lients  

before s tandard payment and del ivery te rms and condit ions are offered .   Interna l  r i sk 

control  assesses the  credit  qual i ty o f  the  customers ,  taking into  account  their  f inancia l  

posi t ion,  pas t  exper ience and o ther  factors.   Individual  r i sk l imi ts are se t  based on 

internal  or  externa l  ra t ings,  and  the  ut i l iza t ion of credi t  l imi ts is  regular ly moni tored.  

( i i i ) I f  the  cont rac t  payments were  past  due  over  30 days  based on the  terms,  there has  been 

a s igni f icant  increase in  credi t  r isk  on that  ins trument since ini t ial  recogni t ion.   

( iv)The default  occurs when the contrac t  payments are pas t  due  over  one year.   

(v)The Company c lassi f ies customer ’s accounts  rece ivable in accordance wi th customer  

types.  The Company applies the simpli f ied approach us ing the provis ion matr ix and loss 

rate  method to  es t imate  expected cred it  loss.  For  accounts receivable wi th objec tive  

evidence of individual  impairment,  the recoverable amount o f individual  assessed 

accounts i s  used as the bas is  for  de termining the impairment loss.  

(vi)The fo llo wing indicators are used to  determine whether  the credi t  impairment o f deb t  

ins truments has occurred:  

i .  I t  beco mes probable  that  the i ssuer  wi l l  enter  bankruptcy or  other  f inancia l  

reorganiza tion due to  their  f inancia l  di fficul t ies ;  

i i .The d isappearance  of  an ac t ive market  for  tha t  f inancia l  asse t  because of f inancia l  

diff icul t ies;  

i i i .Defaul t  or  de l inquency in inte rest  or  pr inc ipal  repayments ;  

iv.Adverse changes in national  or  regional  economic condit ions that  a re expected to  

cause a  default .   

(vi i)The Company wr ites o ff the f inancia l  assets,  which cannot be reasonably expected to  

be recovered,  a fte r  in i t ia t ing recourse  procedures.  

(vi i i)The  Co mpany has  incorporated forward -looking considera t ions to  adjus t  the loss  rate  

bui l t  accord ing to  his to r ic  and current  da ta in order  to  est imate the loss al lowance of 

accounts rece ivables .  The provis ion matr ix f or  the years ended December 31,  2024 and  

2023 are shown as fol lows:  

 
Not past 

    due   

Less than 

30 days 

 past due 

Between 

31 and 90 

days 

 past due 

Between 

91 and 180 

days 

 past due 

Between 

181 and 

360 days 

 past due 

More than 

360 days 

 past due  

Total 

carrying 

amount for 

individuals 

December 31,2024       

Expected loss rate 0.03% 0.03% 1% 3% 10% 100%  

Carrying amount  $86,828   $ 1,470   $     -   $     -   $     -   $      -   $ 88,298  

Loss allowance  $     -   $     -   $     -   $     -   $     -   $      -   $      -  
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December 31,2024 
   Individuals     Others       Total   

Expected loss rate 
    

100% 0.03-100%  

Carrying amount 
    

 $     -   $ 88,298   $ 88,298  

Loss allowance 
    

 $     -   $      -   $      -  

 

 
Not past 

    due   

Less than 

30 days 

 past due 

Between 

31 and 90 

days 

 past due 

Between 

91 and 180 

days 

 past due 

Between 

181 and 

360 days 

 past due 

More than 

360 days 

 past due  

Total 

carrying 

amount for 

individuals 

December 31,2023       

Expected loss rate 0.03% 0.03% 1% 3% 10% 100%  

Carrying amount  $96,152   $ 4,422   $   397   $     -   $     -   $      -   $100,971  

Loss allowance  $     -   $     -   $     4   $     -   $     -   $      -   $      4  

 

December 31,2023 
   Individuals     Others       Total   

Expected loss rate 
    

100% 0.03-100%  

Carrying amount 
    

 $ 7,346   $100,971   $108,317  

Loss allowance 
    

 $ 7,346   $      4   $  7,350  

 
( ix)Movements in re la t ion to  the a l lo wance for  accounts rece ivab le are as fo l lo ws:  

 
         2024                 2023        

January 1  $            7,350   $              166  

Recognition (Reversal) (               916)               7,184  

Write off (             6,434)                   -  

December 31  $                -   $            7,350  
   
 

(c)Liquidi ty r i sk   

( i)Cash f low forecas ts are executed by each operat ing unit s  wi thin the Company and  

summar ized by the Company's f inancia l  unit .  The Company's f inancia l  uni t  moni tors the  

forecasted l iquidi ty requi rements of the Company to  ensure that  i t  has suff ic ient  funds  

to  suppor t  i t s  opera t iona l  needs and mainta ins suffic ient  unused borro wing commitments  

at  a l l  t imes  to  prevent  the  Company from vio la t ing relevant  borrowing l imi ts  or  terms.  

These forecasts take  into  account the Company's deb t  f inancing p lan,  compliance wi th 

debt  terms,  accord ing wi th  financial  rat io  targe ts on the internal  balance sheet ,  and  

external  regula tory requirements such as fo reign exchange  cont rols.   

( i i )The table belo w analyses the Company ’s  non-derivat ive f inancial  l iabi l i t ies  and  

der iva tive f inancia l  l iab il i t ies into  relevant  matur i ty groupings based on the  remaining 

per iod a t  the end of the  financial  report ing per iod to  the contrac tua l  matur i ty da te for  

non-deriva tive financial  l iab il i t ies and to  the expected maturi ty date  for  der i va tive  

f inancia l  l iabi l i t ies.  The  amounts d isclosed in the tab le are the contractual  undiscounted  

cash flo ws.  

December 31, 2024 Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2 More than 

Non-derivative financial liabilities：    Year      and 2 years   and 5 years     5years    

  Notes payable  $       50   $        -   $        -   $        -  

  Accounts payable (including related      17,427            -            -            -  
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 parties) 

  Other payables (including related 

 parties)     185,672            -            -            -  

  Lease liabilities       7,880        7,880       23,641       83,401  

  Long-term loans 

  (including current portion)       9,735       70,882            -            -  
     

Derivative financial liabilities: none     
 

December 31, 2023 Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2 More than 

Non-derivative financial liabilities：    Year      and 2 years   and 5 years     5years    

  Short-term loans  $  130,117   $        -   $        -   $        -  

  Notes payable       3,805            -            -            -  

  Accounts payable      37,247            -            -            -  

  Other payables     244,725            -            -            -  

  Lease liabilities       7,880        7,880       23,641       91,281  

  Long-term loans 

  (including current portion)      67,095       34,852       30,972            -  
     
Derivative financial liabilities: none     

 
( i i i )The Company does not  expect  the t iming of occurrence of the cash flo ws est imated  

through the matur i ty date analys is to  be signi ficantly ear l ier,  nor  expect  the ac tua l  cash 

f low amount to  be  s igni f ic antly d ifferent .   

(3)  Fa ir  va lue informat ion  

A. The di fferent  leve ls tha t  the inputs to  va lua tion techniques are used to  measure fa ir  va lue of  

f inancia l  and non-f inancial  instruments have been defined  as fol lows:   

Level  1:  Quoted  pr ices (unadjusted)  in act ive  markets  for  identical  asse ts  or  l iabi l i t ies  that  

the enti ty can access a t  the measurement da te.  A market  i s  regarded as act ive where  

a  market  in which transact ions for  the asset  or  l iab il i ty take place wi th suff icient  

frequency and volume to  provide pr ic ing information on an ongoing basis .   

Level  2:  Inputs  other  than quoted pr ices  inc luded wi thin Level  1  tha t  are observab le  for  the  

asse t  or  l iab il i ty,  e i ther  direc t ly or  ind irec tly.   

Level  3:  Unobservab le inputs for  the asset  or  l iabil i ty.   

B.  Financial  instruments  no t  measured a t  fa ir  va lue  

The carrying amounts o f cash and cash equiva lents,  accounts rece ivab le,  o ther  receivables,  

short - term loans,  no tes payable ,  accounts payable,  o ther  payables,  lease  l iab il i t ies and long -

term loans ( includ ing current  po r t ion)  are reasonably approximate to  the fa ir  va lues.  

C.  The Company had  no signi ficant  financial  inst ruments measured  at  fa ir  value a t  December 31 ,  

2024 and 2023.  

D.  For  the years ended December 31 ,  202 4 and 2023,  there were  no transfer s between Level  1  

and  Level  2 .  

E.  For  the  year  ended  December  31,  202 4  and  2023,  there were no  changes  o f fair  value for  Level  

3 .  

F.  For  the year  ended December 31,  202 4  and  2023,  there were  no transfer s into  or  out  from 

Level  3 .  

(4)  The Company’s  p lan for  future financial  wel lness  

The Company’s  deb t  rat io  on December  31,  202 4 was  31%. The future p lan for  f inancial  wel lness  

includes:   

The product  manufac tur ing process cont inues to  advance to wards epi taxy wi th high technica l  

threshold :  The Group ’s epitaxy factory has  been buil t  and mass -produced.   In  add it ion to  

supplying the chip demand for  shor t -wave products,  i t  a l so supplies  so me chips required  for  
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long-wave products,  which are sel f - impor ted.   After  the production of epiwafers,  the  

benefi ts  o f cost  reduction have gradual ly been produced.   

B.  Uninterrup ted product  research and  development:  High -end high-speed products  have been 

developed  and shipped one after  ano ther,  and are ac t ively coopera ting wi th well -kno wn 

foreign manufac turers for  develop ment  to  crea te more business  op portuni t ies.  

C.  Diversi f icat ion of product  appl icat ions:  The Company is  act ive ly transforming,  in add it ion 

to  i t s  own products,  giving ful l  p lay to  i t s  exis t ing process capab il i t ies,  expanding the  

profess ional  wafer  foundry business  o f I I I  V fami ly,  hop ing  to  cooperate more close ly wi th  

epicrys tal  l ine manufac turers and mutua lly beneficial  to  form a vir tual  ver t ica l ly integrated  

des ign and wafer  manufactur ing(IDM) fac tory,  on the  one  hand,  increase the ut i l izat ion rate  

of  exis t ing wafer  production l ines,  re duce the  cost  o f exist ing products  and increase  gross  

prof i t .   By serving customers,  the Company can expand the otherwise inaccessib le  markets  

to  increase revenue,  thereby improving the Company ’s  opera t ing condi t ions.   

D.  Expansion of sales  markets /regions :  increase  the propor t ion of  sa les in Taiwan,  Europe,  

Amer ica,  and o ther  Asian regions through diversi f ica t ion of product  applicat ions ,  avo iding 

the r isk o f sel l ing in a  s ingle market  and  expanding revenue.  

E.  Fund rais ing plan:  The Company has a lways  main tained a good cred it  re lat ionship wi th the  

bank,  and wil l  continue the past  exper ience to  act ivi ty apply for  cred it  l ines from f inancia l  

ins t i tut ions  and renew exis t ing f inancing l ines .   I f  necessary,  i t  i s  a l so considered to  ob tain  

f inancing from non-f inancia l  inst i tut ions or  obta in  funds  from the capi tal  market  to  increase  

the space for  capi ta l  dep loyment  and improve the financial  st ructure.   

F.  Reduce costs and improve  opera t ing eff ic iency:  opt imize the process to  reduce production 

costs ,  re -examine  the  e ffect iveness  o f  the organizat ion,  and str ic t ly control  var ious expenses 

to  improve prof i tab il i ty and  opera t ing per formance.   

13.DISCLOSURES IN NOTES  

(1)  Information on s igni f icant  t ransac tions  

A.  Lending funds to  others :  P lease re fer  to  Table 1 .  

B.  Providing endorsements o r  guarantees  to  o thers:  P lease  re fer  to  Table  2 .  

C.  Hold ing of marketab le securi t ies at  the end of the per iod (exc luding the por t ion held due to  

investment in a  subsid iary or  an assoc ia te ,  and the  port ion he ld due to  an interest  in a  jo int  

venture) :  None.  

D.  Acquisi t ion or  sa le  o f the  same secur i ty wi th  the  accumulated  cost  exceeding $300 mi l l ion  

or  20% of the Co mpany’s pa id -in-cap ita l :  None .  

E.  Acquisi t ion of real  es tate  reaching $300 mi ll ion or  20% of the Company ’s  pa id -in-capi ta l  or  

more:  None.  

F.  Disposa l  o f rea l  estate  reaching $300  mi ll ion or  20% of  Company ’s  paid -in-cap ita l  or  more :  

None.  

G.  Purchases or  sales  o f  goods  from or  to  related par t ies  reaching $100 mi l l ion of 20% of paid -

in-cap ital  or  more :  None .  

H.  Receivables  from rela ted par t ies reaching $100 mil l ion or  20% of  Paid -in-cap ita l  or  more :  

Please re fer  to  Table 3 .  
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I .  Trading in der iva tive ins truments under taken dur ing the repor t ing per iod:  None.  

J .  The business rela t ionship between the parent  and the subsidiar ies and be twee n each 

subsid iary,  and the circumstances and amounts o f  any signi ficant  t ransact ions between them:  

Please re fer  to  Table 4 .  

(2)  Information on investees  

Names,  locat ions ,  and  rela ted informat ion of investees  over  which the  company exercises  

signi ficant  influence (excluding information on investment in mainland China):  P lease re fer  to  

Table 5 .  

(3)  Information on investments in Mainland China  

A.  Basic informat ion:  Please re fer  to  Table 6 .  

B.  Signi f icant  t ransact ions,  e i ther  direct ly or  ind irect ly through a  th i rd  area,  wi th investee 

companies  in China:  Please  re fer  to  Table  7 .  

(4)  Information on major  shareholders  

Please re fer  to  Table 8 .  

14.OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION  

Not applicab le .  



Amount of Amount of

Maximum transaction recognized Limit on loans Ceiling on total
No. Company that lent Related Balance for the Amount Actually Range of with  Reason for short- impairment granted to a single loan granted

(Note 1) funds Borrowing party General ledger account party? Period balance Drawn Amount loan borrower term financing loss Name Value 2） （Note 2） Note

0 TrueLight
Corporation

YLTLink
Technology
Corporation

Other Receivables－
Related Parties

Y 106,391$  95,706$   95,706$      2.5%~2.72% Short-term
financing

-              -                None -        95,713$      143,569$  

結束列(勿刪)

    (1)Aggregate amount of lending Funds :The accumulated total of loans granted shall not exceed 30% of the net worth of the Company. Where funds are lent to a company or business with business relationship, the accumulated amount of such loan shall not exceed 70%
of the net worth of the Company. Where funds are lent to a company or business with a short-term financing need, the accumulated amount of such loans shall not exceed 50% of the net worth of the Company.

TrueLight Corporation

Loans to Others

Year ended December 31,2024

Table 1 Unit: NT$ Thousand

(Unless otherwise specified)

Collateral

Note 1： The description of the number columns are as follows：
    (1) Fill in "0" for the issuer.
    (2) The investee company is numbered in sequence starting from the Arabic numeral 1 according to company type.

Note 2：Amendment to the Procedures for Lending Funds to Others：

    (2)Maximum amount permitted to a single borrower The amount of an individual loan granted by the Company to a company or business with business relationship with the Company shall not exceed the business transaction amount in the past year between the parties. Where funds are lent to a company or business with short-term financial need, each individual loan shall not exceed 10% of the net worth of the Company.
    (3)“Business transaction amount” refers to the amount of purchase or sale between the parties, whichever is higher.

Working Capital
Turnover and

other receivables
beyond the

normal credit
term shall be
regarded as
 financings
provided.

Table 1, Page 1



Number

Relationship with
the
endorser/guarantor

Limit on
endorsements/
guarantees
provided for a
single party

Maximun
outstanding
endorsement
/guarantee
amount as at
December
31,2024

Provision of
endorsements/guarantee
s by  parent company to
subsidiay

Provision of
endorsements/guar
antees by
subsidiary to
parent company

 Provision of
endorsements/
guarantees to
the party in
Mainland
china

（Note1） （Note2） （Note3） （Note4） （Note5）  （Note5） （Note5） Footnote

0 TrueLight
Corporation

YLTLink
Technology
Corporation

(1) 111,474$      25,209$       25,209$              25,208$     25,208     2.63                  111,474$      Y N N -

0 TrueLight
Corporation

ZHUHAI FTZ
PRORAY CO.,LTD

(2) 1,114,747$   70,000$       -                         -                -               0.00 1,114,747$   Y N Y -

Table 2

Ratio of accumulated
endorsement
/guarantee amount to
net asset value of the
endorser/guarantor
company

Ceiling on total
amount of
endorsements/gua
rantees providedEndorser/guarantor Company name

Outstanding
endorsement
/guarantee amount as
at December 31,2024

Actual amount
drawn down

Amount of
endorsements
/guarantees
secured with
collateral

                                                          Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars,except as otherwise indicated

TrueLight Corporation

Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others
Year ended December 31,2024

Table 1

Note1：The  numbers filled in for the  endorsements /guarantees provided by the Company or subsidiaries are as  follows：
     (1).The Company is‘ 0’。

     (2).The subsidiaries are numbered in order starting from‘1’
Note2：Relationship between the endorser/ guarantor and the party  being  endorsed /guaranteed is classified into the following  seven categories:

Party being endorsed/guaranteed

     (1).Having business relationship.

     (2).The endorser /guarantor parent  company owns  directly and indirectly more  than 50% voting shares of the   of the endorsed /guaranteed subsidiary.
     (3).The endorsed /guaranteed company owns  directly and indirectly  more than 50%  voting shares of the endorser /guarantor parent compamy.
     (4).The endorser /guarantor parent  company owns  directly and indirectly more  than 90% voting shares of the  of the endorsed /guaranteed compamy.
     (5).Mutual  guarantee of the trade made by the endorsed/guaranteed compamy of joint contractor as required under the construction contract.
     (6).Due to joint venture, all shareholders provide   endorsements/ guarantees to the endorsed /guaranteed  compamy   in  proportion to its ownership. 
     (7)Joint guarantee of the performance   guarantee for pre-sold home sales contract as required under the Consumer Protection Act.

Note3：According to the company's endorsement/guarantee method, the quota of endorsement/guarantee  for a  enterprise is limited to be up to 10% of the company's latest financial statement paid-in capital.For a company, which is held by 100% shareholdings
by the company,the quota of endorsement/guarantee is limited to be up to the financial statement paid-in capital.

Note4：The maximum balance of endorsement/guarantee for others in the current year.
Note5：Y must be filled in only if the parent company of the listed company endorses the subsidiary company, if the subsidiary company endorses the parent company of the listed company, and if it belongs to the mainland China area.

Table 2, Page 1



Table 3

creditor counterparty

Relationship with the

counterparty Nature

 Balance  as  at

December  31,2024 Turnover rate Amount Action taken

ZHUHAI FTZ PRORAY CO.,LTD TrueLight Corporation parent company Accounts
receivable

90,773$                    0.15 70,579$               Note 5,570$                 -$                              

ZHUHAI FTZ PRORAY CO.,LTD TrueLight Corporation parent company Other
receivables

18,901 Not applicable 18,901 Note -                           -                                

Note: The Group's funds are planned and used as a whole. After considering the net amount of accounts receivable and accounts payable among the groups, 

         the relevant funds will be remitted according to the capital needs of each company.

Overdue receivables

TrueLight Corporation

Receivables from related parties reaching  NT$100 million or  20% of the paid-in capital or more

December  31,2024

Amount recovered
after the due date

 allowance for

doubtful accounts

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars,except as otherwise indicated
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Number

(Note1) Company name Counterparty

Relationship

(Note2) General ledger account Amount

Transaction

terms (Note3)

0 TrueLight Corporation ZHUHAI FTZ PRORAY CO.,LTD 1 Other accounts payable 109,674$          Note4 9%
0 TrueLight Corporation ZHUHAI FTZ PRORAY CO.,LTD 1 Processing fee 12,467              Note4 2%
0 TrueLight Corporation ZHUHAI FTZ PRORAY CO.,LTD 1  Other receivables 23,573              Note5 2%
0 TrueLight Corporation YLTLink Technology Corporation 1 Rental income 5,828                Note5 1%
0 TrueLight Corporation YLTLink Technology Corporation 1 Acquisition of property 4,241                Note5 1%
0 TrueLight Corporation YLTLink Technology Corporation 1  Other receivables 98,577              Note5 8%
0 TrueLight Corporation YLTLink Technology Corporation 1 Purchase 5,650                Note4 1%
0 TrueLight Corporation YLTLink Technology Corporation 1 Other payables 2,093                Note5 -
0 TrueLight Corporation YLTLink Technology Corporation 1 Technical service fee 18,660              Note5 3%

Note6：Transactions involving significant amounts are disclosed, and transactions with related parties are not disclosed separately.
Note5：It is handled in accordance with the contract between the two parties.

Note1：The numbers filled in for the transaction  company in respect of inter-cpmpany transactions are as  follows:

     (1).Parent company  is ‘0’.
     (2).The subsidiaries are numbered  in order starting from‘ 1 ’.
Note2：Relationship between  transaction company and counterparty  is classified into the following three categories:

Note4：The purchase and processing fees are handled according to the general purchase price and conditions, and the payment terms are monthly payment within 60 days.

     (1).Parent company to subsidiary.
     (2).Subsidiary to parent company.
     (3).Subsidiary to subsidary.

Note3：Regarding percentage of  transaction amount to consolidated total operating sevenues  or total assets,  it is computed  based  on period-end balance of transation to consolidated total assets  for balance
sheet accounts and based on accumulated transaction amount for the period to consolidated total operating revenues for income statement accounts.

Percentage of
consolidated total
operating revenues or
total assets

Transaction

TrueLight Corporation

Significant inter-company  transactions during the reporting period

For the Year Ended December 31,2024

Table 4 Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars,except as otherwise indicated
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                                 Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars,except as otherwise indicated

Investor Investee Location

Main Businesses

Activies

 Balance as at

December31,2023

 Balance as at

December31,2024  number of shares

 Ownership

(%) Book value Footnote

TrueLight Corporation TrueLight (B.V.I.) Ltd. British Virgin
Islands

Equity investment 404,471$                404,471$              13,000,000            100 127,197$            66,155)($                 66,155)($                

TrueLight Corporation OPTOMEDIA TECHNOLOGY
INC

Taiwan Manufacture and 
trading of wired 
and wireless 
communication 
machinery and 
equipment

103,642                  103,642                2,435,913              32 28,427                9,249                     2,782                    

TrueLight (B.V.I.)Ltd. PRORAY LIMITED Hongkong Equity investment 387,176                  387,176                12,500,000            100            117,103              66,727)(                   66,727)(                  

TrueLight Corporation YLTLink Technology
Corporation

Taiwan Electronic
components
fabricate

68,330                    68,330                  7,398,456              41 40,491)(                16,705)(                   10,747)(                  Note1

TrueLight Corporation

Initial investment amount  Shares held as at December 31, 2024

INFORMATION ON INVESTEES(Excluding Chinese mainland companies)

For the Year Ended December 31,2024

Table 5

Net profit(loss) of
the investee of the
year ended
December31,2024

Investment income
(loss) recognused
by the company for
the year ended
December31,2024

Note1：The line includes adjustments for countercurrent transactions.

Table 5, Page 1



                     Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars,except as otherwise indicated

Remittance of Funds

Investee Company in china Main Businesses Activies Paid-in Capital

Method of

Investment

（Note1）

Accumulated Outward
Remittance Investment
from Taiwan as of
January 1, 2024 Outward Inward

Net Income
(Loss) of the
Investee

% Ownership of
Direct or Indirect
Investment

 Investment Gain

(Loss) (Note 2)

 Carrying Amount

as of December

31,2024 Footnote

ZHUHAI FTZ PRORAY
CO.,LTD

Excludes continental 
companies that design, 
produce, process and sell 
optoelectronic
modules/components

387,176$        1 387,176$          -$            -$           387,176$          66,727)($          100% 66,727)($          117,102$        -$                        

Company name

TrueLight Corporation 387,176$                               414,184$        546,130$  

USD     12,500 thousand  USD    12,633   thousand

Note3：At the end of the current period, the accumulated original investment amount was remitted from Taiwan to Zhuhai Free ZHUHAI FTZ PRORAY CO.,LTD. for US$12,500.Expressed in thousands

TrueLight Corporation

INFORMATION ON INVESTMENTS IN MAINLAND CHINA

For the Year Ended December 31,2024

Table 6

Accumulated Outward
Remittance Investment
from Taiwan as of
December 31, 2024

Accumulated
Repatriation of

Investment
Income as of
December 31,

Note4：A total of USD12,640,000 was approved by the INVESTMENT COMMISSION, MOEA of the Ministry of Economic Affairs, and USD6,647.90 was the remaining funds after the liquidation of branch
companies in 2005.

Note2：Investment gains and losses are recognized in accordance with the financial reports verified by the certified accountants of the parent company in Taiwan, including countercurrent trading adjustments, etc.

Note1：(1)Establish companies through investment in the third region and reinvest in china  companies.
             (2)Reinvest in mainland companies by reinvesting in existing companies in china regions.

Upper Limit on
the Amount of
Investment
Stipulated by
Investment
Commission,
MOEA

Investment
Amounts
Authorized by
Investment

Accumulated Outward
Remittance for Investment in
Mainland China as of
December 31, 2024

Table 6, Page 1



Investee Company Amount % Amount % Balance % Balance %

ZHUHAI FTZ PRORAY
CO.,LTD

12,467)($             (12%)  $                  194 - 109,674)($           (134%) 23,573$            1138%

Sell (purchase) goods Disposal of property Other payables

TrueLight Corporation

For the Year Ended December 31,2024

Table 7

 Other receivables

Main Transactions of Mainland Investment Information - Significant transactions occurred directly or indirectly
 through third-party enterprises and reinvestment in Mainland China by invested companies.

   Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars,except as otherwise indicated

Table 7, Page 1



Name of major shareholders Number of shares held Ownership (%)

Taiwan Mask Corporation 13,500,000 12.11%

Shares

TrueLight Corporation

Major shareholders information

December 31, 2024

Table 8

Table 8, Page 1



TrueLight Corporation 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 1 

Statement 1 page 1 

              Item                           Description                       Amount         

Cash on hand   $               20  

Cash in banks   

  Demand deposits 

─NTD               64,832  

        ─Foreign currencies USD 1,417 thousand at exchange rate of 32.785              46,454  

 JPY 587 thousand at exchange rate of 0.2099                 121  

 CNY 119 thousand at exchange rate of 4.478                 534  

 Others                 248  

  Check deposits                   50  

   
  Time deposits  

─NTD 3 months, interest rate at 1.255%~1.51%, exchange rate of 1             151,200  

─Foreign currencies USD 400 thousand, 2024/12/30~2025/01/13, interest rate at 

4.1%~4.15%, exchange rate of 32.785              13,114  

 

CNY 2,165 thousand, 2024/10/17~2025/02/10, interest rate at 

1.49%~2.3%, exchange rate of 4.478               9,695  

   $          286,268  

   

   

   
 



TrueLight Corporation 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 2 

 

 

Statement 2 page 1 

 

      Customer Name             Description         Amount              Note        

Non-related-parties    

AC012.1   $           32,443   

T0436               13,546   

T0124                6,337   

T0399                5,995   

E0113                5,670   

Others               23,635  

None of the balances of each 

remaining item is greater than 

5% of this account balance 

               87,626   
Less: Allowance for doubtful 

 accounts                    -   

               87,626   

Subsidiaries and associates：    

  Optomedia Technology Inc.                  662   

  Others                   10   

                  672   

   $           88,298   

 
 



TrueLight Corportation 
INVENTORIES 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of  New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 3 

 

Statement 3 page 1 

          Item             Description 

            Amount                

        Note                

      Note       

      Cost          Market price   

Raw materials   $     95,698   $       80,020  

Market price at 

replacement cost 

Work in process         60,614           74,691  

Market price is determined 

by net realizable value 

Finished goods        176,230          231,545  

Market price is determined 

by net realizable value 

   $    332,542   $      264,186   
Less: Allowance for inventory 

devaluation and obsolescence  (     104,599)   

   $    227,943    

     

    

     

 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD/OTHER NON-LIABILITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 4 

 

Statement 4 page 1 

    Investee     

Balance at January 1, 2024      Additions              Deductions         Balance at December 31, 2024  

Market value or net  

     equity value      

Collateral Note 

Shares 

(in thousand) Amount 

Shares 

(in thousand)    Amount   

Shares 

(in thousand) 

Amount 

(Note 1) 

Shares 

(in thousand) 
Owner- 

ship (%)    Amount   

Unit price      

(Note 2)     Total      

TrueLight (B.V.I.)Ltd.  13,000   $   188,242        -   $       -  

           

-  ($    61,045)       -  100%  $  127,197        -   $   127,197  None  

Optomedia Technology Inc.   2,436        25,231        -       3,196  

           

-             -        -  32%      28,427        -        28,427  None  

YLTLink Technology 

Corporation   7,398  (     20,876)       -           -   (     19,615)       -  41% (    40,491)       -  (     40,491) None  

   $   192,597    $   3,196   ($    80,660)    $  115,133    $   115,133    

Note 1：These amounts include the cumulative translation adjustment of $5,059 for the investee company, unrealized gains and losses on forward and backward flow trading of $2,578, investment 

losses of $74,120, increase in associates’ equity of $311, and impairment of $11,292。 

Note 2: The market value of investee company accounted for using equity method is presented at the net value.    

              

 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
CHANGES IN PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUITMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 
 

Statement 5 

 

Statement 5 page 1 

     Item        

Balance at  

  January 1,      Additions       Deductions        Transfers      

Balance at 

   December 31     Collateral       Note 

Buildings  $    840,468   $        185    $         -    $         -   $    840,653  

Provide book value of 

$166,833 pledge to the 

bank  

Machinery 

equipment     1,836,277         18,483  (     184,073)        24,173      1,694,860  None  

Mold equipment        10,537              -              -              -         10,537  None  

Transportation 

equipment         1,677              -  (       1,181)             -            496  None  

Office equipment        16,516              -  (          25)             -         16,491  None  

equipment under 

installation        28,565         38,223              -  (      24,173)        42,615  None  

  $  2,734,040   $     56,891  ($    185,279)  $          -   $  2,605,652    

 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUITMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 6 

 

Statement 6 page 1 

      Item            Balance at January 1,            Additions               Deductions           Balance at December 31     Note    

Buildings   $         588,392    $         32,746   ($          4,200)   $        616,938    

Machinery equipment           1,742,948              36,238   (         184,073)           1,595,113    

Mold equipment             10,537                   -                   -              10,537    

Transportation equipment              1,247                  51   (             802)                496    

Office equipment             15,452                 363   (              25)             15,790    

   $       2,387,122    $         61,361   ($         184,900)   $       2,263,583    

 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

December 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 7 

 

Statement 7 page 1 

   Vendor Name       Description            Amount             Note        

Non-related-parties    

KS005   $            4,452   

SM002                1,711   

CD017                1,674   

CS016                1,538   

BC003                1,228   

Others                6,824  

None of the balances of each 

remaining item is greater than 5% 

of this account balance 

   $           17,427   
 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
OPERATING REVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 8 

 

Statement 8 page 1 

        Items              Quantity             Amount             Note        

Chips and components  221,374  thousands/pce   $          349,556   
Optical transmission and 

connection modules  1,826  thousands/pce              154,264   

Others               52,317   

   $          556,137   

    

    

 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
OPERATING COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 9 

 

Statement 9 page 1 

          Items            

   

  Description           Amount       Notes 

Beginning balance of raw materials   $          119,231   

Add: Purchased during the year               95,875   

Less: Ending balance of raw materials at December 31  (            95,698)  

Less：Raw material scrap  (             1,618)  

     Sell raw materials  (               111)  

     Transfer to expenses  (            28,129)  

Used during the year               89,550   

Direct Labor               69,341   

Manufacturing expenses              336,682   

Manufacturing costs              495,573   

Add: WIP at the beginning of the period               64,321   

Less：WIP at the ending of the period  (            60,614)  

      Transfer to expenses  (            46,035)  

Semi-finished product cost              453,245   
Add: Semi-finished products and finished products at the 

 beginning of the period              198,934   

Add：Expenses transferred in  (             8,099)  
Less：Semi-finished products and finished products at the end  

of the period  (           176,230)  

    Scrapping of semi-finished and finished products  (             3,436)  

Cost of manufacturing and sales              464,414   

Add:：Cost of raw materials sold                  111   

      Inventory sluggishness and falling price recovery benefits               21,216   

      Normal capacity difference               12,251   

Less：Income from sale of scraps  (             1,229)  

Total Operating costs   $          496,763   

 
 



TrueaLight Corporation 
MANUFACTURING EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 10 

 

Statement 10 page 1 

       Items          Description           Amount             Notes       

Wages and salaries   $           82,798   

Depreciation expense               54,217   

Processing fee               46,905   

Electricity expense               46,658   

Indirect materials               41,243   

Consumables               18,022   

Technical service fee               18,660   

Others               28,179  

None of the balances of 

each remaining item is 

greater than 5% of this 

account balance 

   $          336,682   

 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
SELLING EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 11 

 

Statement 11 page 1 

       Items           Description             Amount           Notes      

Wages and salaries   $            9,385   

management fee                1,066   

Others                5,294  

None of the balances of 

each remaining item is 

greater than 5% of this 

account balance 

   $           15,745   

 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 12 

 

Statement 12 page 1 

        Items             Description             Amount              Notes       

Wages and salaries   $           56,536   

professional service fee                6,633   

Repair and maintenance fee                6,384   

Others               17,157  

None of the balances of each 

remaining item is greater 

than 5% of this account 

balance 

   $           86,710   

 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 13 

 

Statement 13 page 1 

        Items             Description            Amount            Notes      

Wages and salaries   $           44,177   

Transferred expenses from 

production department               34,742   

Depreciation expenses               10,930   

Indirect materials               13,837   

Others               29,017  

None of the balances of each 

remaining item is greater 

than 5% of this account 

balance 

   $          132,703   

 
 



TrueLight Corporation 
LABOUR, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 14 

 

Statement 14 page 1 

    Function 
 

 

Nature 

 

2024 2023 

Operating costs 
Operating 

expenses 

Non-operating 

income and 

expenses 

Total Operating costs 
Operating 

expenses 

Non-operating 

income and 

expenses 

Total 

Employee benefit expense 
 
                

 Wages and salaries  
 
 $    133,324   $     95,759   $          -   $    229,083   $    143,888   $    104,246   $          -   $    248,134  

 Labour and health insurance fees 
 
       15,283          7,295              -         22,578         16,557          8,455              -         25,012  

 Pension costs 
 
        7,389         11,179              -         18,568          8,046         16,461              -         24,507  

 Directors' remuneration 
 
            -          3,160              -          3,160              -          1,530              -          1,530  

 Other employee benefit expense 
 
        9,039          3,697              -         12,736          8,750          3,799              -         12,549  

Depreciation expenses 
 
       54,217         12,916          1,018         68,151         65,348         20,117          4,288         89,753  

Amortization expenses 
 
           -            47             -            47             -           894             -           894  

Explanation： 

1.The number of employees in the current and previous year were 287 and 316 respectively, with 4 non-executive directors who were not also employees in both year. 

2.Companies listed on a stock exchange or traded over-the-counter should disclose the following information: 

(1) Average employee benefits expenses for the year: $1,003((Total employee benefits expenses for the year) – (Total director's remuneration)) / ((Number of employees for the year) – 

(Number of non-employee directors)) 

   Average employee benefits expenses for the previous year: $994((Total employee benefits expenses for the previous year) – (Total director's remuneration)) / 

 (Number of employees for the previous year) – (Number of non-employee directors))  

(2) Average employee salary cost for this year is $812. (Total salary cost for this year) / ((Number of employees for this year) – (Number of directors who are not also employees)). 

   Average employee salary cost for the previous year was $795. (Total salary cost for the previous year) / ((Number of employees for the previous year) – (Number of directors who are 

not also employees)). 

(3) Adjustment change in average employee salary cost: 2% 

((Average employee salary cost for this year) – (Average employee salary cost for the previous year) ) / (Average employee salary cost for the year before the previous year. 

(4) Please describe the company's compensation policy (Including directors, supervisors, managers, and employees).  



TrueLight Corporation 
LABOUR, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES BY FUNCTION(continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)  

Statement 14 

 

Statement 14 page 2 

     A. The variable director's remuneration of our company is based on the annual operating performance and determined according to the company's articles of association, 

if there is a profit allocation of no more than 4% for the remuneration of directors.  The fixed director's remuneration shall be paid, regardless of business profit 

or loss, and determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with the extent of its participation in the operation of the Company and the value of its contribution, 

taking in account the level of the industry at home and abroad. 

 

 

 

     B. Employee Compensation System of Our Company : 

The compensation includes fixed and variable salary components such as wages, allowances (such as position allowances, overtime pay, meal allowances, etc.), and 

bonuses, as well as employee rewards. The fixed and variable salary components are granted based on the company's salary and compensation structure standards, 

taking into account job responsibilities, personal performance achievement rate, contribution to the company's operations, overall operational performance and 

profit, and industry salary levels. Employee rewards are determined according to the company's articles of association, with 4% to 10% of profits allocated as 

employee rewards, distributed based on the company's business performance and individual performance. 

 

 

 

 

     C. Executive Compensation System of Our Company : 

The compensation includes fixed and variable salary components such as wages, allowances (such as position allowances, overtime pay, meal allowances, etc.), and 

bonuses. The fixed and variable salary components are granted based on the company's salary and compensation structure standards, taking into account job 

responsibilities, personal performance achievement rate, contribution to the company's operations, overall operational performance and profit, and industry salary 

levels. Regarding executive compensation, all remuneration is determined by the salary and compensation committee according to the regulations, and proposed 

salary and compensation recommendations are submitted to the board of directors for discussion. 

 

 

 

 

          

 
  




